
High Peak Borough Council

AUDIT & REGULATORY COMMITTEE AGENDA

Date: Wednesday, 27 September 2017

Time: 6.30 pm

Venue: The Cafe - Pavilion Gardens, Buxton

The internal and external auditors will be available to meet committee 
members from 6.15 to 6.30 pm. Any councillors who are not able or do 
not wish to attend the session at 6.15 pm are requested to join the 
meeting with the Executive Councillors and officers at 6.30 pm.

19 September 2017

PART 1
1. Apologies for absence 

2. To receive Disclosures of Interest on any matters before the Committee 

 i) Disclosable Pecuniary Interests 
ii) Other Interests. 

3. To approve the Minutes of the previous meeting (Pages 3 - 8)

4. External Audit Findings (Pages 9 - 46)

5. Statement of Final Accounts 
Appendix A available at https://www.highpeak.gov.uk/article/1281/Annual-
statement-of-accounts

6. Risk Management Update (Pages 47 - 58)

7. Treasury Management Update: Mid Year Report 2017/18 (Pages 59 - 72)

8. 2017/18 Internal Audit Periodic Report April to August 2017 (Pages 73 - 88)

9. Appointment of Mayor 2018/19 (Pages 89 - 92)

10. Minutes of the Constitution Sub-Committee - 19 September 2017 (Pages 93 - 130)

11. Exclusion of the press and public 
To resolve that the public and press be excluded from the meeting for the following item 
because there may be disclosure to them of exempt information as defined in  Part I of 
Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.


Public Document Pack

https://www.highpeak.gov.uk/article/1281/Annual-statement-of-accounts
https://www.highpeak.gov.uk/article/1281/Annual-statement-of-accounts


PART 2
12. To approve the exempt minutes of the previous meeting (Pages 131 - 132)

(Paragraph 3, 5 - Information relating to the financial or business affairs of 
any particular person (including the authority holding that information) 
Information in respect of which a claim to legal professional privilege could 
be maintained in legal proceedings. )

SIMON BAKER
CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Membership of Audit & Regulatory Committee
Councillor F Sloman (Chair) Councillor A Barrow
Councillor C Boynton Councillor S Helliwell
Councillor N Longos Councillor J Pritchard
Councillor J Todd Councillor J Walton



1 
 

 High Peak Borough Council 

 
 

AUDIT & REGULATORY COMMITTEE 
 
 

Meeting: Wednesday, 26 July 2017 at 6.30 pm in The Board Room, Pavilion Gardens, 
Buxton 
 

Present: Councillor D Robins (Chairman) 
 

 Councillors A Barrow, C Boynton, S Helliwell, J Pritchard, F Sloman and 
J Todd 
 
Phil Jones and Allison Rhodes (External Audit) and Councillor E Thrane 
were also in attendance. 
 

 An apology for absence was received from Councillor J Walton. 
 

18/10 TO APPROVE THE MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING 
(Agenda Item 3) 
 
RESOLVED:  
 
That the minutes of the meeting held on 18 May 2017 be approved as a 
correct record. 
 

18/11 EXTERNAL AUDIT ORAL UPDATE 
(Agenda Item 4) 
 
The External Auditors advised that the draft accounts had been well 
prepared.  The timescale had been brought forward and implemented a year 
early. The audit findings, value for money conclusion and summary would 
be circulated for the September Committee meeting, though any questions 
could be raised before. 
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the oral update be received with thanks. 
 
 

18/12 REVISED LOCAL CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 
(Agenda Item 5) 
 
Consideration was given to the revised Local Code of Corporate 
Governance.  The international framework and language used were 
discussed. Determining the interventions necessary to optimise the 
achievement of the intended outcomes meaning what do we need to do to 
deliver the best results. 
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the revised Local Code of Corporate Governance be approved, subject 
to the addition of plain English translations where required. 
 Page 3

Agenda Item 3




Audit & Regulatory Committee 
Wednesday, 26 July 2017 

 

2 
 

18/13 ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 2016/17 
(Agenda Item 6) 
 
Regulation 6 (1) (a) of the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 requires 
the Council to conduct a review each financial year of the effectiveness of its 
system of internal control and approve an Annual Governance Statement 
(AGS).  The statement needs to be prepared in accordance with proper 
practices in relation to accounts and must be approved in advance of the 
Council approving the statement of accounts. ‘Proper practices in relation to 
accounts’ relates to those accounting practices which are contained in a 
code of practice or other document which is identified for the purposes of 
this provision by regulations made by the Secretary of State. Such guidance 
is contained in the Chartered Institute of Public Finance & Accountancy 
(CIPFA) / Society of Local Authority Chief Executives (SOLACE) framework 
and guidance on ‘Delivering Good Governance in Local Government’. 

 
RESOLVED: 
 

That subject to any amendments required to the Financial Statements, the Annual 
Governance Statement 2016/17 be approved. 

 
18/14 DRAFT STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2016/17 

(Agenda Item 7) 
 
The Committee received the draft Statement of Accounts 2016/17, in 
compliance with the legislative provisions in relation to financial reporting 
and the Council’s commitment to transparency and accountability in the 
stewardship of public funds.  
 
The Committee noted that the draft accounts were subject to audit and final 
adjustment and for 2017/18 would need to be published by 31/5/2018.  
Members were welcomed to submit questions or comments in writing to the 
Finance and Procurement Manager prior to the September meeting. 
 
It was reported that movement in housing association stock would be 
included in the Housing Revenue Account business plan. 

 
RESOLVED:  

 
That the Committee note the draft Statement of Accounts 2016/17 prior to 
external audit and submit questions or comments in writing to the Finance 
and Procurement Manager in advance of the September meeting. 
 

18/15 ANNUAL TREASURY MANAGEMENT REPORT 2016/17 
(Agenda Item 8) 
 
Consideration was given to the Council’s Treasury Management 
performance in 2016/17 in compliance with the Chartered Institute of Public 
Finance and Accountancy’s (CIPFA) Code of Practice on Treasury 
Management 2009 and generally accepted good practice.   
 
The Treasury Management Strategy, interest rates, investment in sterling 
(GBP), loan end dates and benchmarking were discussed. Page 4




Audit & Regulatory Committee 
Wednesday, 26 July 2017 

 

3 
 

  
RESOLVED: 
 
That Council be recommended to approve the Annual Treasury 
Management Report 2016/17. 
 

18/16 TREASURY MANAGEMENT UPDATE 
(Agenda Item 9) 
 
The Council’s Treasury Management performance in 2017/18 was 
scrutinized in compliance with the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and 
Accountancy’s (CIPFA) Code of Practice on Treasury Management 2009 
and generally accepted good practice.  Signatory amendments and changes 
to treasury management advisors were discussed. 

 
RESOLVED: 

 
1. That Council be recommended to note the current Treasury 

Management position (as at 30th June 2017). 
 

2. That the Royal Bank of Scotland (RBS) mandate application be 
completed to the effect that all existing signatories be removed 
(section 5) and two new authorised signatories are added (section 6): 

 

 Claire Hazeldene (Finance & Procurement Manager)  

 Stephen Robinson (Principal Finance Officer) 
 
 

18/17 2016/17 INTERNAL AUDIT PERIODIC REPORT 
(Agenda Item 10) 
 
The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 required the Council to “undertake  
an effective internal audit to evaluate the effectiveness of its risk management, 
control and governance processes, taking into account public sector internal 
auditing standards or guidance”.  In accordance with the Public Sector Internal 
Audit Standards, the Audit Manager must report periodically to the Audit 
Committee on the internal audit activity’s performance relative to its plan.  
 
RESOLVED: 

 
That the progress information contained within the report be noted. 

 
18/18 INTERNAL AUDIT - ANNUAL REPORT 2016/17 

(Agenda Item 11) 
 
It was reported that the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 requires the 
Council to “undertake an effective internal audit to evaluate the 
effectiveness of its risk management, control and governance processes, 
taking into account public sector internal auditing standards or guidance”.  In 
accordance with the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards, the Audit 
Manager must deliver an annual internal audit opinion and report that can 
be used by the organisation to inform its governance statement. 
 
RESOLVED: Page 5




Audit & Regulatory Committee 
Wednesday, 26 July 2017 

 

4 
 

 
1. That the Audit Service’s 2016/17 year end performance information 

contained within the report be noted. 

 
2. That the opinion on the overall adequacy and effectiveness of the 

Council’s internal control environment be noted. 
 

 
18/19 2016/17 ANNUAL REVIEW OF EFFECTIVENESS OF INTERNAL AUDIT 

(Agenda Item 12) 
 
The Accounts & Audit Regulations 2015 require the Council in each financial 
year to conduct a review of the effectiveness of the system of internal 
control, and that the findings of this review must be considered by a 
committee or by members of the authority meeting as a whole.  An annual 
review of the effectiveness of Internal Audit to demonstrate conformance 
with the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards and Local Government 
Application Note forms part of this review.   
 
Resources and the tendering process for the external quality assessment 
report were discussed. 

 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the annual review of the effectiveness of Internal Audit for 2016/17 including 
the Quality Assurance and Improvement Programme be noted and that Internal 
Audit is operating effectively and can be relied upon when considering the Annual 
Governance Statement for 2016/17.  

 
18/20 2016/17 ANNUAL REVIEW OF EFFECTIVENESS OF THE AUDIT AND 

REGULATORY COMMITTEE 
(Agenda Item 13) 
 
Having considered the report on the Annual Review of the Effectiveness of Internal 
Audit, the Committee were aware of the requirement to comply with the Accounts 
and Audit Regulations 2015.  As part of the process of assurance, best practice 
suggests that an annual review of the effectiveness of the Audit & Regulatory 
Committee be undertaken.   

 
The revised terms of reference, updating the skills audit, advertising and possible 
length of service of 3 or 4 years for independent members were also discussed. 
 
RESOLVED: 
 

1. That the annual review of the effectiveness of the Audit and Regulatory 
Committee be approved. 
 

2. That the revised terms of reference (Appendix 3 to the report) be 
approved, subject to further consideration by the Constitution Sub-
Committee. 

 
3. That the recruitment process for independent members of the Committee, 

detailed in Section 3.9 of the report, be noted. 

 Page 6




Audit & Regulatory Committee 
Wednesday, 26 July 2017 

 

5 
 

4. That recruitment be considered by the Chairman, Vice-Chairman and the 
Executive member. 

 
5. That the skills audit be revisited once the independent members have 

been appointed. 
 

 
18/21 EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC 

(Agenda Item 14) 
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the public and press be excluded from the meeting for the following item 
because there may be disclosure to them of exempt information as defined in 
paragraphs 3 and 5 of Part I of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972. 

 
18/22 BUXTON CRESCENT & THERMAL SPA PROJECT - ORAL UPDATE 

(Agenda Item 15) 
 
The Committee received an oral update relating to the Buxton Crescent and 
Spa Project and associated risks. 
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the oral update be received with thanks. 
 
 
The meeting concluded at 7.47 pm 
 
 
 
 
 
CHAIRMAN 

 

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



© 2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report for High Peak Borough Council  |  2016/17 

The Audit Findings

for  High Peak Borough Council

Year ended 31 March 2017

September 2017

Phil Jones

Engagement Lead

T 0121 232 5232

E phil.w.jones@uk.gt.com

Allison Rhodes

Manager

T 0121 232 5285

E allison.rhodes@uk.gt.com

P
age 9

A
genda Item

 4



© 2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP  | Audit Findings Report for High Peak Borough Council |  2016/17 2

Chartered Accountants

Grant Thornton UK LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales: No.OC307742. Registered office: Grant Thornton House, Melton Street, Euston Square, London NW1 2EP.

A list of members is available from our registered office. Grant Thornton UK LLP is authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority.

Grant Thornton UK LLP is a member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd (GTIL). GTIL and the member firms are not a worldwide partnership. Services are delivered by the member firms. GTIL and

its member firms are not agents of, and do not obligate, one another and are not liable for one another’s acts or omissions. Please see grant-thornton.co.uk for further details..

This Audit Findings report highlights the key findings arising from the audit for the benefit of those charged with governance (in the case of High Peak Borough Council, 

the Audit and Regulatory Committee), as required by International Standard on Auditing (UK & Ireland) 260, the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 and the National 

Audit Office Code of Audit Practice. Its contents have been discussed with management.

As auditors we are responsible for performing the audit, in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK & Ireland), which is directed towards forming and 

expressing an opinion on the financial statements that have been prepared by management with the oversight of those charged with governance. The audit of the financial 

statements does not relieve management or those charged with governance of their responsibilities for the preparation of the financial statements. 

The contents of this report relate only to those matters which came to our attention during the conduct of our normal audit procedures which are designed primarily for the 

purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements and giving a value for money conclusion. Our audit is not designed to test all internal controls or identify all 

areas of control weakness. However, where, as part of our testing, we identify any control weaknesses, we will report these to you. In consequence, our work cannot be 

relied upon to disclose defalcations or other irregularities, or to include all possible improvements in internal control that a more extensive special examination might 

identify. We do not accept any responsibility for any loss occasioned to any third party acting, or refraining from acting on the basis of the content of this report, as this 

report was not prepared for, nor intended for, any other purpose.

We would like to take this opportunity to record our appreciation for the kind assistance provided by the finance team and other staff during our audit.

Yours sincerely

Phil Jones

Grant Thornton UK LLP

The Colmore Building

20 Colmore Circus

Birmingham B4 6AT

T +44 (0)121 212 4000

www.grant-thornton.co.uk 

September 2017

Audit Findings for High Peak Borough Council for the year ending 31 March 2017

Chair and Members of the Audit and Regulatory Committee

High Peak Borough Council

Buxton Town Hall

Market Place

Buxton

Derbyshire

SK17 6EL

P
age 10



© 2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report for High Peak Borough Council  |  2016/17 3

Contents

Section Page

1. Executive summary 4

2. Audit findings 8

3. Value for Money 24

4. Fees, non-audit services and independence 30

5. Communication of audit matters 34

Appendix

A Audit opinionP
age 11



© 2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report for High Peak Borough Council  |  2016/17 

Section 1: Executive summary

01. Executive summary

02. Audit findings

03. Value for Money

04. Fees, non audit services and independence

05. Communication of audit matters

P
age 12



© 2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report for High Peak Borough Council  |  2016/17 5

Executive summary

Purpose of this report

This report highlights the key issues affecting the results of High Peak Borough 

Council ('the Council') and the preparation of the Council's financial statements 

for the year ended 31 March 2017. It is also used to report our audit findings to 

management and those charged with governance in accordance with the 

requirements of International Standard on Auditing (UK & Ireland) 260,  and the 

Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 ('the Act').  

Under the National Audit Office (NAO) Code of Audit Practice ('the Code'), we 

are required to report whether, in our opinion, the Council's financial statements 

give  a true and fair view of the financial position of the Council and its income 

and expenditure for the year and whether they have been properly prepared in 

accordance with the CIPFA Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting. . 

We are also required to consider other information published together with the 

audited financial statements (including the Annual Governance Statement (AGS) 

and Narrative Report, whether it is consistent with the financial statements, 

apparently materially incorrect based on, or materially inconsistent with, our 

knowledge of the Council acquired in the course of performing our audit; or 

otherwise misleading

We are required to carry out sufficient work to satisfy ourselves on whether the 

Council has made proper arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and 

effectiveness in its use of resources ('the value for money (VFM) conclusion').

Auditor Guidance Note 7 (AGN07) clarifies our reporting requirements in the 

Code and the Act. We are required to provide a conclusion whether in all 

significant respects, the Council has put in place proper arrangements to secure 

value for money through economic, efficient and effective use of its resources for 

the relevant period.

The Act also details the following additional powers and duties for  local 

government auditors, which we are required to report to you if applied:

• a public interest report if we identify any matter that comes to our attention 

in the course of the audit that in our opinion should be considered by the 

Council or brought to the public's attention (section 24 of the Act); 

• written recommendations which should be considered by the Council and 

responded to publicly (section 24 of the Act);

• application to the court for a declaration that an item of account is contrary 

to law (section 28 of the Act);  

• issue of an advisory notice (section 29 of the Act); and

• application for judicial review (section 31 of the Act)  

We are also required to give electors the opportunity to raise questions about 

the accounts and consider and decide upon objections received in relation to 

the accounts under sections 26 and 27 of the Act. 

Introduction

In the conduct of our audit we have updated our audit approach, which we 

communicated to you in our Audit Plan in February 2017. These changes were 

to reflect the outcome of our initial risk assessment for the VFM conclusion, 

reported to you in our progress report in May 2017.

We received the draft financial statements on 5 June, as the Council  were 

successful in pulling forward  their own closedown timetable in readiness to 

meet the earlier deadlines that approach for 2017/18. These were published for 

public inspection along with the other required information, including the 

Annual Governance Statement on 30 June. It is only when all this information is 

published together, in accordance with the Accounts and Audit regulations      , 

that this marks the start of the public inspection period.

Supporting working papers were provided in advance of our main audit visit 

which took place from 3 July.

P
age 13



© 2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report for High Peak Borough Council  |  2016/17 6

Executive summary

Our audit is substantially complete although we are finalising our procedures in the 

following areas: 

• completing audit managers and engagement lead review

• obtaining and reviewing the management letter of representation

• updating our post balance sheet events review, to the date of signing the 

opinion.

Key audit and financial reporting issues

Financial statements opinion

We have identified one misclassification of liabilities affecting the balance sheet 

and no adjustments that affect the Council's reported financial position (details are 

recorded in section two of this report).  The financial statements for the year 

ended 31 March 2017 recorded total comprehensive income and expenditure for 

the Council of £37,746k (net income position).

We have identified one matter where value of property , plant and equipment is  

understated. This is reported as an unadjusted error.

We have agreed a number of adjustments to improve the presentation of the 

financial statements and to amend disclosures. Further details are set out in section 

two of this report.

We anticipate providing a unqualified audit opinion in respect of the financial 

statements (see Appendix A).

Other financial statement responsibilities

As well as an opinion on the financial statements, we are required to give an 

opinion on whether other information published together with the audited 

financial statements is consistent with the financial statements. This includes if 

the AGS and Narrative Report is misleading or inconsistent with the 

information of which we are aware from our audit.

Based on our review of the Council’s Narrative Report and AGS we are 

satisfied that they are consistent with the audited financial statements. We are 

also satisfied that the AGS meets the requirements set out in the 

CIPFA/SOLACE guidance and that the disclosures included in the Narrative 

Report are in line with the requirements of the CIPFA Code of Practice.

We raised no significant issues in performing our review in these areas.

P
age 14



© 2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report for High Peak Borough Council  |  2016/17 7

Executive summary

Controls

Roles and responsibilities

The Council's management is responsible for the identification, assessment, 

management and monitoring of risk, and for developing, operating and monitoring 

the system of internal control.

Our audit is not designed to test all internal controls or identify all areas of control 

weakness.  However, where, as part of our testing, we identify any control 

weaknesses, we report these to the Council. 

This includes our findings in relation to our review of  IT controls. Further details 

are provided within section two of this report.

Value for Money

Based on our review, we are satisfied that, in all significant respects, the Council 

had proper arrangements in place to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness 

in its use of resources

Further detail of our work on Value for Money are set out in section three of this 

report.

Other statutory powers and duties

We have not identified any issues that have required us to apply our statutory 

powers and duties under the Act.

Grant certification

In addition to our responsibilities under the Code, we are required to 

certify the Council's Housing Benefit subsidy claim on behalf of the 

Department for Work and Pensions. At present our work on this claim is 

in progress and is not due to be finalised until 30 November 2017. We will 

report the outcome of this certification work through a separate report to 

the Audit and Regulatory Committee.

The way forward

Matters arising from the financial statements audit and our review of the 

Council's arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness 

in its use of resources have been discussed with the Executive Director 

(CFO), the Finance and Procurement Manager and the finance team.

Acknowledgement

We would like to take this opportunity to record our appreciation for the 

assistance provided by the finance team and other staff during our audit.

Grant Thornton UK LLP

September 2017

P
age 15



© 2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report for High Peak Borough Council  |  2016/17 

Section 2: Audit findings

01. Executive summary

02. Audit findings

03. Value for Money

04. Fees, non audit services and independence

05. Communication of audit matters

P
age 16



© 2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report for High Peak Borough Council  |  2016/17 9

Audit findings

In performing our audit, we apply the concept of materiality, following the requirements of International Standard on Auditing (UK & Ireland) (ISA) 320: Materiality in 

planning and performing an audit. The standard states that 'misstatements, including omissions, are considered to be material if they, individually or in the aggregate, could 

reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the financial statements'. 

As we reported in our audit plan, we determined overall materiality to be £864k (being 2% of gross revenue expenditure). We have considered whether this level remained 

appropriate during the course of the audit and have modified this to reflect the outcome of the draft financial statements, to £1,021k (2% of the gross revenue expenditure)

We also set an amount below which misstatements would be clearly trivial and would not need to be accumulated or reported to those charged with governance because we 

would not expect that the accumulated effect of such amounts would have a material impact on the financial statements. We have defined the amount below which 

misstatements would be clearly trivial to be £51k. Our assessment of the value of clearly trivial matters has been adjusted to reflect our revised materiality calculation.

As we reported in our audit plan, we identified the following items where we decided that separate materiality levels were appropriate. These remain the same as reported in 

our audit plan.

As we reported in our audit plan, we identified the following items where we decided that separate materiality levels were appropriate

Materiality

Balance/transaction/disclosure Explanation Materiality level

Disclosures of officers' remuneration, salary bandings 

and exit packages in the notes to the financial statements

Due to public interest in these disclosures

and the statutory requirement for them to 

be made.

£20,000

Related party transactions £20,000 (although the significance of  any matters arising will also be evaluated with regard to the 

materiality from the perspective of the other party)

Misstatements, including omissions, are considered to be material if they, individually or in the aggregate, could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users 

taken on the basis of the financial statements; Judgments about materiality are made in light of surrounding circumstances, and are affected by the size or nature of a misstatement, 

or a combination of both; and Judgments about matters that are material to users of the financial statements are based on a consideration of the common financial information needs 

of users as a group. The possible effect of misstatements on specific individual users, whose needs may vary widely, is not considered. (ISA (UK&I) 320)

P
age 17



© 2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report for High Peak Borough Council  |  2016/17 10

Audit findings against significant risks

Risks identified in our audit plan Work completed Assurance gained and issues arising

1. The revenue cycle includes fraudulent 

transactions

Under ISA (UK&I) 240 there is a presumed risk that 

revenue may be misstated due to the improper 

recognition of revenue. 

This presumption can be rebutted if the auditor 

concludes that there is no risk of material 

misstatement due to fraud relating to revenue 

recognition.

Having considered the risk factors set out in ISA240 and the 

nature of the revenue streams at  High Peak Borough  

Council, we have determined that the risk of fraud arising 

from revenue recognition can be rebutted, because:

• there is little incentive to manipulate revenue recognition

• opportunities to manipulate revenue recognition are very 

limited; and

• the culture and ethical frameworks of local authorities, 

including High Peak Borough Council, mean that all forms 

of fraud are seen as unacceptable.

Our audit work on tax revenues, grant income 

and other revenues has not identified any 

issues in respect of revenue recognition that 

would require us to reassess this rebuttal.

2. Management over-ride of controls

Under ISA (UK&I) 240 it is presumed  that the risk of  

management  over-ride of controls is present in all 

entities.

 Review of accounting estimates, judgments and decisions 

made by management

 Review of journal entry process and selection of unusual 

journal entries for testing back to supporting 

documentation 

 Review of unusual significant transactions.

Our audit work has not identified any evidence of 

management over-ride of controls. In particular 

the findings of our review of journal controls and 

testing of journal entries has not identified any 

significant issues. 

We set out later in this section of the report our 

work and findings on key accounting estimates 

and judgements. 

Audit findings

"Significant risks often relate to significant non-routine transactions and judgmental matters. Non-routine transactions are transactions that are unusual, either due to size 

or nature, and that therefore occur infrequently. Judgmental matters may include the development of accounting estimates for which there is significant measurement 

uncertainty" (ISA (UK&I) 315). 

In this section we detail our response to the significant risks of material misstatement which we identified in the Audit Plan.  As we noted in our plan, there are two 

presumed significant risks which are applicable to all audits under auditing standards.

"Significant risks often relate to significant non-routine transactions and judgmental matters. Non-routine transactions are transactions that are unusual, due to either size or nature, 

and that therefore occur infrequently. Judgmental matters may include the development of accounting estimates for which there is significant measurement uncertainty." (ISA (UK&I) 

315) . In making the review of unusual significant transactions "the auditor shall treat identified significant related party transactions outside the entity's normal course of business as 

giving rise to significant risks." (ISA (UK&I) 550)

P
age 18



© 2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report for High Peak Borough Council  |  2016/17 11

Audit findings against other risks

Transaction 

cycle Description of risk Work completed Assurance gained & issues arising

Employee 

remuneration

Payroll expenditure represents a significant 

percentage of the Council’s gross expenditure.

We identified the completeness of payroll 

expenditure in the financial statements as a risk 

requiring particular audit attention: 

• Employee remuneration accruals 

understated (Remuneration expenses not 

correct)

We have undertaken the following work in relation to this 

risk:

 Documented our understanding of the processes and 

controls in place around the accounting for employee 

remuneration

 walked through the controls in place (to confirm our 

understanding) over payroll expenditure

 performed trend analysis to identify any unusual 

variances in pay transactions

 reviewed the reconciliation of your payroll system to the 

general ledger

We have also carried out other work in this area:

• tested a sample of employee remuneration payments in 

the year to ensure accurately accounted for and in the 

correct period

 agreed the disclosure of senior officers remuneration to 

the information from the payroll system and supporting 

evidence  (in full rather than sample approach).

Our audit work has not identified any 

significant issues in relation to the risk 

identified.

Audit findings

In this section we detail our response to the other risks of material misstatement which we identified in the Audit Plan.

"In respect of some risks, the auditor may judge that it is not possible or practicable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence only from substantive procedures. Such risks may 

relate to the inaccurate or incomplete recording of routine and significant classes of transactions or account balances, the characteristics of which often permit highly automated 

processing with little or no manual intervention. In such cases, the entity’s controls over such risks are relevant to the audit and the auditor shall obtain an understanding of them." 

(ISA (UK&I) 315) 

P
age 19



© 2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report for High Peak Borough Council  |  2016/17 12

Audit findings against other risks (continued)

Transaction 

cycle Description of risk Work completed Assurance gained & issues arising

Operating

expenses

Non-pay expenditure represents a significant 

percentage of the Council’s gross expenditure. 

Management uses judgement to estimate 

accruals of un-invoiced non-pay costs. 

We identified the completeness of non- pay 

expenditure in the financial statements as a risk 

requiring particular audit attention: 

• Creditors understated or not recorded in the

correct period (Operating expenses 

understated)

We have undertaken the following work in relation to this 

risk:

 Documented our understanding of the processes and 

controls in place around the accounting for operating 

expenses

 walked through the key controls to assess the whether 

those controls were in line with our documented 

understanding

 reviewed the completeness and accuracy of the control 

account reconciliation between the purchase ledger and 

the general ledger

 obtained an understanding of the accruals process and 

tested a sample of accruals (along with other creditors 

balances)

 tested a sample of payments after the year end to 

confirm these were accounted for in the correct period.

We have also tested a sample of operating expense 

transactions in the year to ensure these are accurately 

accounted for and in the correct period.

Our audit work has not identified any 

significant issues in relation to the risk 

identified. 

Audit findings

P
age 20



© 2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report for High Peak Borough Council  |  2016/17 13

Audit findings against other risks continued

Transaction cycle Description of risk Work completed Assurance gained & issues arising

Changes to the 

presentation of local

authority financial 

statements

CIPFA has been working on the 

‘Telling the Story’ project, for which 

the aim was to streamline the 

financial statements and improve 

accessibility to the user and this has 

resulted in changes to the 2016/17 

CIPFA Code of Practice.

The changes affect the presentation 

of income and expenditure in the 

financial statements and associated 

disclosure notes. A prior period 

adjustment (PPA) to restate the 

2015/16 comparative figures is also 

required.

We have undertaken the following work in relation to this risk:

 reviewed the re-classification of the Comprehensive Income and 

Expenditure Statement (CIES) comparatives to ensure that they are 

in line with the Council’s internal reporting structure

 reviewed the appropriateness of the revised grouping of entries within 

the Movement In Reserves Statement (MIRS)

 tested the classification of income and expenditure for 2016/17 

recorded within the Cost of Services section of the CIES

 tested the completeness  of income and expenditure by reviewing the 

reconciliation of the CIES to the general ledger

 tested the classification of income and expenditure reported within the 

new Expenditure and Funding Analysis (EFA) note to the financial 

statements

 reviewed the new segmental reporting disclosures within the 2016/17 

financial statements  to ensure compliance with the CIPFA Code of 

Practice.

Our audit work has not identified any 

significant issues in relation to the risk 

identified. 

The Council have prepared the new 

statements in accordance with the 

requirements.

The disclosure of the effect of these 

changes on the prior year 

comparatives is comprehensive and 

particularly well presented.

Presentation amendment to separate 

the movement on the general fund and 

HRA balances reported on the EFA.

Audit findings

Going concern

As auditors, we are required to “obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence about the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern assumption in the 

preparation and presentation of the financial statements and to conclude whether there is a material uncertainty about the entity's ability to continue as a going concern” 

(ISA (UK&I) 570). 

We have reviewed the Council's assessment and are satisfied with management's assessment that the going concern basis is appropriate for the 2016/17 financial 

statements. 

P
age 21



© 2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report for High Peak Borough Council  |  2016/17 14

Accounting policies, estimates and judgements

Accounting area Summary of policy Comments Assessment

Revenue recognition  Government grants and contributions are 

recognised in the Comprehensive Income and 

Expenditure Account when there is reasonable  

assurance that the payment will be received and 

conditions will be satisfied.

 Revenue income is credited  when it falls due (when 

the  council provides the relevant goods or 

services).

 Interest due to or from third parties in relation to 

loans and investments, is accrued in full at the year 

end.

 The CIES includes the Council's share of the 

accrued income for council tax and  non domestic 

rates.

• The Council's accounting policy for revenue recognition is 

appropriate under IAS 18 Revenue and CIPFA Local 

Government Code of Accounting Practice .

• We have undertaken substantive testing of tax income, grants 

and other revenues and are satisfied that the Council has 

recognised income in accordance with its accounting policies

• Revenue recognition policies are appropriately disclosed



Green

Accounting 

policy 

appropriate 

and 

disclosures 

sufficient

Assessment

 Marginal accounting policy which could potentially attract attention from regulators  Accounting policy appropriate but scope for improved disclosure  Accounting policy appropriate and disclosures sufficient

Audit findings

In this section we report on our consideration of accounting policies, in particular revenue recognition policies,  and key estimates and judgements made and included 

with the Council's financial statements.  

P
age 22



© 2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report for High Peak Borough Council  |  2016/17 15

Accounting policies, estimates & judgements continued

Accounting area Summary of policy Comments Assessment

Judgements and 

estimates

An authority is required to disclose, the 

judgements that management has made 

in the process of applying the authority’s 

accounting policies and that have the 

most significant effect on the amounts 

recognised in the financial statements.

Critical judgments are set out at note 3 of 

the Statement of Accounting Policies and 

include the Council's judgements over:

• the assessment of leases

• the impairment of assets

• the value of assets

Note 4 provides information about 

assumptions made about the future, and 

other major sources of estimation 

uncertainty. These include:

• property valuation

• pension liability

Our main findings from our review of judgements and estimates (and the associated 

accounting entries) are:

• We are satisfied that the critical judgements reported are appropriate and in accordance 

with the requirements of the CIPFA Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting. 

• The Council have added the carrying value of the estimated balances to the disclosure, as 

required by the Code.

• Property valuation – we have considered the work of the Council's valuers to provide an 

estimate of the value of land and buildings and the associated asset lives. In order to 

place reliance on the work of this management expert, we have reviewed the 

competence, expertise and objectivity of the valuer, and considered the scope of their 

work and the basis on which the valuation is carried out. We have tested a sample of 

asset revaluations, additions and disposals to confirm the accounting policies have been 

appropriately applied. The value of council dwellings reported in the finance statements is 

understated by £55k compared to the detailed asset register and valuers report. We have 

reported this difference as an unadjusted error.

• Our work reviewed the Council's compliance with the requirements of IFRS 13 which 

impacts upon the valuation of surplus assets and investment property. The Council has 

included some additional disclosures in response to our feedback.

• We have also considered, for assets that are not valued at the year end, how 

management is satisfied  that these are not materially different to current/fair value and 

compared to our own estimate. Management have provided further information and valuer

confirmation to support their assertion that  there would be no material difference. 

• Pension liabilities - A firm of consulting actuaries (Hymans Robertson LLP) is engaged to 

provide the Council with expert advice about the assumptions to be applied when valuing 

pension liabilities. These assumptions cover areas such as mortality rates, inflation and 

future increases in salaries and pensions. We have reviewed the assumptions used by the 

actuary and are satisfied that they are reasonable and do not result in material 

misstatement of the pension liabilities. We have reviewed the competence, expertise and 

objectivity of the actuary who carried out the Council's pension fund valuation. We 

confirmed the consistency of the pension fund asset and liability and disclosures in notes 

to the financial statements with the actuarial report from your actuary.



green

Overall 

accounting 

policy 

appropriate 

and 

disclosures 

sufficient 

Assessment

 Accounting policy which is inappropriate  Accounting policy appropriate but scope for improved application or disclosure         Accounting policy appropriate and disclosures sufficient

Audit findings

P
age 23



© 2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report for High Peak Borough Council  |  2016/17 16

Accounting policies, estimates and judgements continued

Accounting area Summary of policy Comments Assessment

Going concern The Executive Director, as the Council's s151 

officer has a reasonable expectation that the 

services provided by the Council will continue 

for the foreseeable future.  The rationale for 

this was set out in the 'Informing the Risk 

Assessment' reported in February 2017. 

Members concur with this view. For this 

reason, the Council continues to adopt the 

going concern basis in preparing the financial 

statements.

We are satisfied with management's assessment that the going 

concern basis is appropriate for the 2016/17 financial statements. 

green 

Other accounting policies We have reviewed the Council's policies 

against the requirements of the CIPFA Code 

and accounting standards.

With a small number of disclosure amendments, the Council's 

accounting policies are appropriate and consistent with previous 

years. 



green 

Assessment

 Marginal accounting policy which could potentially attract attention from regulators  Accounting policy appropriate but scope for improved disclosure  Accounting policy appropriate and disclosures sufficient

Audit findings

P
age 24



© 2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report for High Peak Borough Council  |  2016/17 17

Other communication requirements

Issue Commentary

1. Matters in relation to fraud We have previously discussed the risk of fraud with the Audit and Regulatory Committee who confirmed there to be no material fraud. 

We have not been made aware of any other incidents in the period and no other issues have been identified during the course of our 

audit.

2. Matters in relation to related 

parties

From the work we carried out, we have not identified any related party transactions which have not been disclosed. As part of the 

process to assess related party transactions, Councillors and senior management are requested to provide an annual return, however 

there were a number that were not returned. In these instances the Council had to rely on other sources of information in order to 

identify the transactions that may require disclosure in the financial statements. It is important that this information is provided if the 

Council’s arrangements  to identify, account for and disclose related party relationships and transaction are  to be fully effective

3. Matters in relation to laws and 

regulations

You have not made us aware of any significant incidences of non-compliance with relevant laws and regulations and we have not 

identified any incidences from our audit work.

4. Written representations A standard letter of representation has been requested from the Council.

5. Confirmation requests from third 

parties 

We obtained positive direct confirmations with counterparties and other banks for loans and investment balances.

6. Disclosures Our review found no material omissions in the financial statements. We highlighted some amendments to disclosures from our audit 

work and these are set out at page 22. 

7. Matters on which we report by 

exception

We have not identified  any issues we would be required to report by exception in the following areas:

If the Annual Governance Statement does not meet the disclosure requirements set out in the CIPFA/SOLACE guidance or is 

misleading or inconsistent with the information of which we are aware from our audit

The information in the Narrative Report is materially inconsistent with the information in the audited financial statements or our 

knowledge of the Group and the Council acquired in the course of performing our audit, or otherwise misleading.

8. Specified procedures for Whole 

of Government Accounts 

We are required to carry out specified procedures (on behalf of the NAO) on the Whole of Government Accounts (WGA) consolidation 

pack under WGA group audit instructions. 

Note that detailed work is not required as the Council does not exceed the specified group reporting threshold of £350 million.

9. Audit evidence and explanations All information and explanations requested from management was provided.

10. Significant difficulties We did not encounter any significant difficulties during the audit.

11. Other matters There are no other matters we need to report to you.

Audit findings

We set out below details of other matters which we, as auditors, are required by auditing standards and the Code to communicate to those charged with governance.

P
age 25



© 2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report for High Peak Borough Council  |  2016/17 18

Internal controls
As part of our audit to express an opinion on your financial statements, we considered and walked through the internal controls for Employee Remuneration and 

Operating Expenses as set out on page 11-12. We also considered the controls relating to housing benefits.

The matters that we identified during the course of our audit  are set out in the table below. These matters have been reported to the Audit and Regulatory  Committee in 

May 2017.

Audit findings

Assessment

 Significant deficiency – risk of significant misstatement

 Deficiency – risk of inconsequential misstatement

Assessment IT Controls Recommendations

1.


We have completed a review of the general IT control 

environment as part of our cyclical approach. This 

identified:

• That there was no periodic review of users access 

rights within Active Directory and Integra.

• That the number of users (from Northgate Public 

Services)  with administrator rights appeared high

Our work has identified no material weaknesses which are likely to adversely impact on the 

Council's financial statements. We have made two recommendations:

• to review users access rights and permissions at least every six months and when changes 

are made to user accounts. 

• to review staff assigned administrator access rights at least every six months. As noted 

previously, the number of Northgate staff with admin access is particularly high due to the 

way in which support is provided by a number of support engineers, however it remains 

important that this is reviewed and dormant accounts are removed. 

Management response:

• A review of access for Active Directory, Integra  has been conducted and the required 

changes made.

• A review of Northgate Public Services staff with administrator access has been conducted.

• A 6 monthly review is scheduled to take place every April and October.

"The purpose of an audit is for the auditor to express an opinion on the financial statements. 

Our audit included consideration of internal control relevant to the preparation of the financial 

statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not 

for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control. 

The matters being reported are limited to those deficiencies that the auditor has identified during 

the audit and that the auditor has concluded are of sufficient importance to merit being reported 

to those charged with governance." (ISA (UK&I) 265) 

P
age 26



© 2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report for High Peak Borough Council  |  2016/17 19

Internal controls - review of  issues raised in prior year

Assessment Issue and risk Update on actions taken to address the issue


In our previous audit we reported on the weaknesses in the 

operation of the bank reconciliation that had occurred 

between July 2016 and June 2016. 

Bank reconciliations are now completed on a periodic and routine basis.

Imbalances are investigated (with effort commensurate with the risk) to ensure that these do 

not accumulate and that they do not mask other more significant differences.

We reviewed the year end bank reconciliation as part of our audit work and have no matters 

to report.

Audit findings

P
age 27



© 2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report for High Peak Borough Council  |  2016/17 20

Unadjusted misstatements

Audit findings

Detail Comprehensive 

Income and 

Expenditure 

Statement

£'000

Balance Sheet

£'000

Reason for not adjusting

1 There is a difference between the Council’s asset register 

and the value of property plant and equipment – council 

dwellings, relating in the main, to the de-recognition of 

assets in 2016/17. 

55 (55) This error is not material and so 

there is no requirements for this to 

be corrected at this time.

Overall impact 55 (55)

The table below provides details of adjustments identified during the audit which have not been made within the final set of financial statements.  The Audit and 

Regulatory Committee  is required to approve management's proposed treatment of all items recorded within the table below:

P
age 28



© 2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report for High Peak Borough Council  |  2016/17 21

Impact of  uncorrected misstatements in the prior year

Audit findings

Detail of matter reported in 2015/16 Comprehensive 

Income and 

Expenditure 

Statement

£'000 

Balance 

Sheet

£'000

Update on actions taken to 

address the issue in 

2016/17

1 We reported that the creditors balance at 31 March 2017 included

£309k that relates to capital retention monies for liabilities that 

predated 2009/10 and that further detailed information was not 

retained. On this basis we considered that there was insufficient 

evidence to support the assertion that these remain a valid liability as 

the balance sheet date. Whilst the past event ie the capital work, may 

well have occurred, there was insufficient evidence to conclude that 

this will be settled in the future by a payment.

We  recommended that the Council completed a detailed review of the 

balances to assess the likelihood of payment and to determine whether 

these should be retained, transferred to provisions, or written back  and 

if appropriate transferred to an earmarked reserve.

309 309 The Council complete a detailed 

review and determined that it was 

appropriate to remove £180k of 

these historic liabilities.  This was 

all the general  fund items and  

£29k of the HRA liabilities. The 

residual HRA liabilities were found 

to relate to more recent capital 

investment and appropriate to be 

retained or were subsequently paid 

in 2016/17.

We are satisfied that matters, 

reported in the prior year as an 

unadjusted misstatement have no 

ongoing impact  on the 2016/17 

financial statements.

Overall impact £309 (15/16) £309 

(15/16)

NIL in 2016/17

In the previous year we identified one matter for which we need to consider the impact on the current audit :

P
age 29



© 2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report for High Peak Borough Council  |  2016/17 22

Misclassifications and disclosure changes

Audit findings

Account balance Adjustment type Value

£'000

Nature of amendment and impact on the financial statements

MIRS Disclosure 1,519 Presentation amendment to disclose the value of other comprehensive income and expenditure 

against the correct descriptor

CIES Disclosure 39,133 The Code does not permit income or expenditure to be presented as extraordinary items but 

does require the nature and amount or material items to be disclosed separately. Amended the 

reference in CIES and notes to the ‘HRA exceptional’ item and details instead disclosed as a 

footnote.

Note 1b Expenditure 

and Funding analysis

Disclosure 17,397 The Code requires the movements reported at the foot of the EFA to be split between general 

fund and HRA.

Note 5b reconciliation 

of pension liabilities

Disclosure 18,497 Additional level of detail provided to break down the re-measurement entry that  features as part 

of the reconciliation of liabilities  table.

Note 6 Adjustment 

between accounting 

basis and funding basis 

under regulations

Disclosure

3,000

2,760

The entries on the MIRS adjustment note relating to pension transactions were switched in 

comparison with the entries appearing in the pensions notes and the pension reserve. 

Corrections made to:

• Items relating to retirement benefits debited or credited to the CIES

• Employers contributions and direct payments to pensioners

Also correction to descriptor for capital grants recognised as income and not applied

Note 7b Investment 

Properties

Disclosure 1,043 Investment properties are now a material item on the balance sheet and so the disclosure 

requirements of the Code apply. Note now includes additional disclosure relating to the fair value 

measurement.

There are no adjusted misstatements that affect the primary statements. 

There are a small number of amendments to the way information is disclosed or described that affect the primary statements.The other amendments relate to notes to 

the financial statements. The table below provides disclosure changes identified during the audit and addressed in the final set of financial statements. The Council has 

also made improvements to respond to other minor points.

P
age 30



© 2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report for High Peak Borough Council  |  2016/17 23

Misclassifications and disclosure changes

Audit findings

Account balance Adjustment type Value

£'000

Impact on the financial statements

Note 7d Valuation 

information

Disclosures 6,456 Surplus assets per note 7 are a material asset class for which there additional disclosures 

required regarding fair value.

The valuation date of surplus assets  should be reported as 31 March 2016 not 2017.

Note 7h Leases Disclosure 466 In accordance with the Code, the disclosures relating to finance leases (lessee) are removed 

as these are not material. 

Note 12 Unusable 

reserves

Total 208k The Code requires that a local authority shall not reduce the understandability of its financial 

statements by obscuring material information with immaterial information.  On this basis the 

detailed disclosures relating to immaterial unusable reserves are removed, namely  deferred 

capital receipts, collection fund adjustment account, accumulated absence account.

Housing Revenue

Account Note 6

Disclosure 3,259 Capital expenditure – presentational correction: 

• REFCUS should be £28k not £3259

• Council house repair should be £3259 not 28.

P
age 31



© 2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report for High Peak Borough Council  |  2016/17 

Section 3: Value for Money

01. Executive summary

02. Audit findings

03. Value for Money

05. Communication of audit matters

04. Fees, non-audit services and independence

P
age 32



© 2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report for High Peak Borough Council  |  2016/17 25

Value for Money

Risk assessment 

We carried out an initial risk assessment in March 2017 and identified the 
following significant risks, which we communicated to you in our progress and 
update report dated 8 May 2017. 

We identified risks in respect of specific areas of proper arrangements using the 
guidance contained in AGN03.

We have continued our review of relevant documents up to the date of giving 
our report, and have not identified any further significant risks where we need 
to perform further work.

We carried out further work only in respect of the significant risks we identified 
from our initial and ongoing risk assessment. Where our consideration of the 
significant risks determined that arrangements were not operating effectively, we 
have used the examples of proper arrangements from AGN 03 to explain the 
gaps in proper arrangements that we have reported in our VFM conclusion.

Background

We are required by section 21 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 
('the Act') and the NAO Code of Audit Practice ('the Code') to satisfy 
ourselves that the Council has put in place proper arrangements for securing 
economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources. This is known as 
the Value for Money (VFM) conclusion. 

We are required to carry out sufficient work to satisfy ourselves that proper 
arrangements are in place at the Council. The Act and NAO guidance state 
that for local government bodies, auditors are required to give a conclusion on 
whether the Council has put proper arrangements in place. 

In carrying out this work, we are required to follow the NAO's Auditor 
Guidance Note 3 (AGN 03) issued in November 2015. AGN 03 identifies 
one single criterion for auditors to evaluate: 

In all significant respects, the audited body had proper arrangements to ensure it took 
properly informed decisions and deployed resources to achieve planned and sustainable 
outcomes for taxpayers and local people. 

AGN03 provides examples of proper arrangements against three sub-criteria 
but specifically states that these are not separate criteria for assessment 
purposes and that auditors are not required to reach a distinct judgement 
against each of these. 

P
age 33



© 2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report for High Peak Borough Council  |  2016/17 26

Significant qualitative aspects

AGN 03 requires us to disclose our views on significant qualitative aspects of the 

Council's arrangements for delivering economy, efficiency and effectiveness.

We have focused our work on the significant risks that we identified in the Council's 

arrangements. 

We have set out more detail on the risks we identified, the results of the work we 

performed and the conclusions we drew from this work on pages 27 to 29 .

Overall conclusion

Based on the work we performed to address the significant risks, we concluded that:

• the Council had proper arrangements in all significant respects to ensure it 

delivered value for money in its use of resources. 

The text of our report, which confirms this can be found at Appendix A.

Value for Money

P
age 34



© 2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report for High Peak Borough Council  |  2016/17 27

Key findings

We set out below our key findings against the significant risks we identified through our initial risk assessment. We have identified no further risks through our ongoing 

review of documents and discussions with management. 

Significant risk Work to address Findings and conclusions

The Council has historically 

managed its finances well and 

has consistently achieved 

savings. It is on course to 

achieve an underspend  against 

its general fund budget for 

2016/17. However, following the 

most recent settlement, and 

with the expected reduction in 

government grant, the Council 

has identified that it must 

secure savings of over £2.1m 

for the general fund over the 

lifetime of the four year MTFP.

The challenge that this saving 

requirement presents to the 

longer term financial 

sustainability of the Council is 

regarded a significant risk to the 

VFM conclusion.

We met with key officers to 

discuss key strategic 

challenges and the Council's 

proposed response and 

considered reports to 

members to:

• review the outturn 

position for 16/17 and 

the budget plans for 

17/18 

• review the Council's 

progress in updating its 

medium term financial 

plan and efficiency and 

rationalisation strategy

(which includes major 

procurement activities)

The Council has set out its proposals to secure the £2.1m of financial  savings over the four year period of the MTFS 

2017 - 2012. The new efficiency and rationalisation strategy has been incorporated into the budget setting  cycle and 

so was subject to Council approval in Feb 2017. The strategy sets out five areas of focus, these being major 

procurement, asset management, housing and economic growth, income generation and rationalisation. These 

schemes have a longer lead in time and so the Council is planning the use of reserves of £2.095 m in the first three 

years of MTFS, to support this transition. Reserves remain at an appropriate level and so this strategy is not 

considered to place the Council at undue risk and the retained balance remains in line with the Council's reserves 

policy.

We note the outcome of the financial position reported for 2016/17, The provisional outturn on the General Fund 

Revenue Account for the year is £9,554,288. This represents a surplus of £697,021.  Although the Council report a 

shortfall  of £419,210  in the delivery of the Efficiency Plan savings in-year, the in-year underspend on the overall 

budget  has meant that the Council has not drawn from the earmarked reserve set up to support the Efficiency 

Programme. The Housing Revenue Account Budget has secured a surplus of £2.447m which is taken to reserves to 

support future capital and revenue costs relating to the housing stock.

On this basis, we have sufficient assurance that the Council has appropriate arrangement in place to identify and 

realise further financial savings over the lifetime of the MTFP. We have obtained sufficient information to support our 

value for money conclusion, particularly with regard to the Council's arrangements for utilising assets effectively to 

support the delivery of strategic priorities, and planning finances effectively to support the sustainable delivery of 

strategic priorities and maintain statutory functions.

Value for Money

P
age 35



© 2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report for High Peak Borough Council  |  2016/17 28

Significant risk Work to address Findings and conclusions

The Council's  Business Plan 

for the housing revenue 

account, is affected by external 

factors including the 

government announcements of 

rent reductions that must be 

applied in future.   

We need to consider the 

Council's arrangements to 

update its Business Plan during 

2016/17 in light of this and other 

developments , and how it is 

seeking to address the longer 

term financial sustainability of 

the housing revenue account. 

This area represents a risk to 

the VFM conclusion.

We considered how the 

Council have responded to 

the developments that 

impact upon its HRA 

Business Plan through 

discussions with officers and 

review of key documents 

and reports to Members.

During 2016/17 there has been a fundamental review of the HRA Business Plan in order to reflect the impact of 

rent reductions as announced by Government. The original projection was that the social sector rent reduction 

would result in a annual deficit on the HRA of £2.2m. The Council put in place arrangements to develop the 30 year 

business plan, alongside a process of self assessment against the CIPFA / CIH Voluntary Code for Self financed 

HRA and the opportunity to address any matters unresolved from the transfer of the housing function from the 

former arms length management organisation (ALMO) High Peak Community Housing.

This work has continued throughout 2016/17 and has resulted in the HRA Business plan - Financial improvement 

plan as set out in the appendix B to the MTFS with further work to finalise the HRA Business Plan early in 2017/18.

The improvement plan reports an improvement to the projected deficit position, reducing this to £770k in 2020/21. 

The plan for 2017/18 is for a small surplus of £57k - but the following three years then build up to annual deficit 

positions of £243k( in 18/19), £496k in 2019/20 and £770k in 2020/21.

Whilst at this stage the HRA still showed an overall deficit in the medium term, we not that the review continued into 

2017/18. The projections of further savings to be secured, indicated that there are areas where savings will be 

focussed in order to provide for a balanced HRA.  The projections from these areas, which include voluntary 

reduction in repayment of debt,  rental income, repairs and maintenance savings,  ICT costs, void costs and  

savings through the disposal of surplus stock, may realise savings of up to £1.2m per annum and so more than 

cover the projected deficits referred above.

On this basis, we are satisfied that this does not pose a risk to our VFM conclusion, particularly with regard to the 

Council having appropriate arrangements in place during 2016/17, for utilising assets effectively to support the 

delivery of strategic priorities, and planning finances effectively to support the sustainable delivery of strategic 

priorities and maintain statutory functions.

Value for Money

P
age 36



© 2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report for High Peak Borough Council  |  2016/17 29

Value for money

Significant difficulties in undertaking our work

We did not identify any significant difficulties in undertaking our work on your 

arrangements which we wish to draw to your attention.

Significant matters discussed with management

There were no matters where no other evidence was available or matters of such 

significance to our conclusion or that we required written representation from 

management or those charged with governance. 

Any other matters

There were no other matters from our work which were significant to our 

consideration of your arrangements to secure value for money in your use of 

resources.

P
age 37



© 2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report for High Peak Borough Council  |  2016/17 

Section 4: Fees, non-audit services and independence

01. Executive summary

02. Audit findings

03. Value for Money

05. Communication of audit matters

04. Fees, non audit services and independence

P
age 38



© 2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report for High Peak Borough Council  |  2016/17 31

We confirm below our final fees charged for the audit and provision of non-audit services charged from the beginning of the financial year to 31 August 2017.

Fees, non audit services and independence

Fees in respect of other grant work, such as reasonable assurance 

reports, are shown under 'Fees for other services'.

At this stage there are no variations in fees from the proposed  fee 

(per the audit plan) which are in line with the scale fee set by Public 

Sector Audit Appointments Ltd (PSAA)

Grant certification

Our fees for grant certification cover only housing benefit subsidy 

certification, which falls under the remit of Public Sector Audit 

Appointments Limited. The actual fee for grant certification is not 

yet finalised as this work is not complete. Any proposed 

amendments will be discussed with the Executive Director and 

must also be approved by PSAA Ltd.

Fees

£

Council audit 47,273

Grant certification 11,040

Total audit fees (excluding VAT) 58,313

Fees for other services

Service Fees £

Non audit services (2016/17):

• Leisure services – options (work completed in 2016/17)

• CFOi insights – subscription agreed September 2016

• Place Analytics – year 3 of subscription package

• Waste management benchmarking and business case challenge

8,990

2,000

5,625

4,396

Audit related services:

Pooling capital receipts 2015/16 – work completed in November 2016 2,200

Total fees for other services 23,211

We obtained approval from PSAA Ltd to carry out the Waste Management work as this 

work brings the total sum charged in respect of non audit services work (at each of the 

two Councils) to a total that is above the reporting threshold. This approval was granted 

in November 2016.

Independence and ethics

We confirm that there are no significant facts or matters that impact on our 

independence as auditors that we are required or wish to draw to your attention. We 

have complied with the Auditing Practices Board's Ethical Standards and confirm that 

we are independent and are able to express an objective opinion on the financial 

statements.

We confirm that we have implemented policies and procedures to meet the 

requirements of the Auditing Practices Board's Ethical Standards.

For the purposes of our audit we have made enquiries of all Grant Thornton UK LLP 

teams providing services to the group/Council. The table below summarises all other 

services which were identified.P
age 39



© 2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report for High Peak Borough Council  |  2016/17 32

Independence and other services
We have considered whether other services might be perceived as a threat to our independence as the Council’s auditor and have ensured that appropriate safeguards are 

put in place. In each case we have considered the possible threats to our independence in respect of self-interest, self review, management, advocacy, familiarity and 

intimidation. We obtained approval from PSAA Ltd to carry out the Waste Management work as this work brings the total sum charged in respect of non audit services 

work (at each of the two Councils) to a total that is above the reporting threshold. This approval was granted in November 2016. The non-audit services are consistent 

with the Council's policy on the allotment of non-audit work to your auditor.

Fees, non audit services and independence

Service provided to Fees Threat and 

Safeguard?

Comment

Audit related services 

Pooling capital receipts 

2015/16 

High Peak Borough Council 2,200 No This work is closely connected to the audit of the financial statements and so it is 

appropriate that this is carried out by the audit engagement team.

Non-audit services The costs reported below are the 50% share attributed to this Council

Leisure services – options 

(work completed in 

2016/17)

High Peak Borough Council 

and Staffordshire Moorlands 

District Council

8,990 No The work is led and undertaken by a team separate from the audit team. Decisions 

remain with management and Grant Thornton LLP do not advise on this.

CFOi insights – subscription 

agreed September 2016

High Peak Borough Council 

and Staffordshire Moorlands 

District Council

2,000 No Nature of the services presents no threat to independence as CFO Insights is an 

online software service offering that enables users to rapidly analyse, segment and 

visualise all the key data relating to the financial performance of a local authority. 

The financial data, revenue outturn and budget data is provided by CIPFA and the 

socio-economic data is drawn from Place Analytics. The data is contextualised using 

a range of socio-economic indicators enabling the LA to understand their relative

performance.

Place Analytics – year 3 of 

subscription package

High Peak Borough Council 

and Staffordshire Moorlands 

District Council

5,625 No Nature of the services presents no threat to independence as this is an online 

software service offering that enables users to rapidly analyse, segments and 

visualise a host of data sets relating to the Economic, social and environmental 

make-up of a local authority. 

Waste management 

benchmarking and business 

case challenge

High Peak Borough Council 

and Staffordshire Moorlands 

District Council

4,396 No The work is led and undertaken by a team separate from the audit team. Decisions 

remain with management and we do not advise on this.

TOTAL £23,211

P
age 40



© 2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report for High Peak Borough Council  |  2016/17 

Section 6: Communication of  audit matters

01. Executive summary

02. Audit findings

03. Value for Money

05. Fees, non audit services and independence

06. Communication of audit matters

04. Other statutory powers and duties

P
age 41



© 2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report for High Peak Borough Council  |  2016/17 34

Communication to those charged with governance

Our communication plan

Audit 

Plan

Audit 

Findings

Respective responsibilities of auditor and management/those charged 

with governance



Overview of the planned scope and timing of the audit. Form, timing 

and expected general content of communications



Views about the qualitative aspects  of the entity's accounting and 

financial reporting practices, significant matters and issues arising 

during the audit and written representations that have been sought



Confirmation of independence and objectivity  

A statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements 

regarding independence,  relationships and other matters which might  

be thought to bear on independence. 

Details of non-audit work performed by Grant Thornton UK LLP and 

network firms, together with  fees charged 

Details of safeguards applied to threats to independence

 

Material weaknesses in internal control identified during the audit 

Identification or suspicion of fraud involving management and/or others 

which results in material misstatement of the financial statements



Non compliance with laws and regulations 

Expected modifications to auditor's report 

Uncorrected misstatements 

Significant matters arising in connection with related parties 

Significant matters in relation to going concern 

International Standards on Auditing ISA (UK&I) 260, as well as other ISAs, prescribe 

matters which we are required to communicate with those charged with governance, 

and which we set out in the table opposite.  

The Audit Plan outlined our audit strategy and plan to deliver the audit, while this 

Audit Findings report presents the key issues and other matters arising from the 

audit, together with an explanation as to how these have been resolved.

Respective responsibilities

The Audit Findings Report has been prepared in the context of the Statement of 

Responsibilities of Auditors and Audited Bodies issued by Public Sector Audit 

Appointments Limited (http://www.psaa.co.uk/appointing-auditors/terms-of-

appointment/)

We have been appointed as the Council's independent external auditors by the Audit 

Commission, the body responsible for appointing external auditors to local public 

bodies in England at the time of our appointment. As external auditors, we have a 

broad remit covering finance and governance matters. 

Our annual work programme is set in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice 

('the Code') issued by the NAO (https://www.nao.org.uk/code-audit-practice/about-

code/). Our work considers the Council's key risks when reaching our conclusions 

under the Code. 

It is the responsibility of the Council to ensure that proper arrangements are in place 

for the conduct of its business, and that public money is safeguarded and properly 

accounted for.  We have considered how the Council is fulfilling these 

responsibilities.

Communication of audit matters

P
age 42

http://www.psaa.co.uk/appointing-auditors/terms-of-appointment/
https://www.nao.org.uk/code-audit-practice/about-code/


© 2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report for High Peak Borough Council  |  2016/17 35

Appendix

Appendices

P
age 43



© 2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report for High Peak Borough Council  |  2016/17 36

Appendix A: Audit opinion

We anticipate we will provide the Council with an unmodified audit report

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF HIGH PEAK BOROUGH 

COUNCIL

We have audited the financial statements of High Peak Borough Council (the "Authority") for the year ended 

31 March 2016 under the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 (the "Act"). The financial statements 

comprise the Movement in Reserves Statement, the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, the 

Balance Sheet, the Cash Flow Statement, the Housing Revenue Account Income and Expenditure Statement, 

the Movement on the Housing Revenue Account Statement, the Collection Fund Account and the related 

notes comprising the Statement of Accounting Policy, detailed Accounting Policies, Notes to the Financial 

Statements, Notes to the Housing Revenue Accounts and Notes to the Collection Fund Accounts. The 

financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and the 

CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2016/17.

This report is made solely to the members of the Authority, as a body, in accordance with Part 5 of the Act and 

as set out in paragraph 43 of the Statement of Responsibilities of Auditors and Audited Bodies published by 

Public Sector Audit Appointments Limited. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the 

members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the 

fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Authority 

and the Authority's members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of the Executive Director (Chief Finance Officer) and auditor

As explained more fully in the Statement of Responsibilities for the Statement of Accounts, the Executive 

Director (Chief Finance Officer) is responsible for the preparation of the Statement of Accounts, which 

includes the financial statements, in accordance with proper practices as set out in the CIPFA/LASAAC Code 

of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2016/17, which give a true and fair view. 

Our responsibility is to audit and express an opinion on the financial statements in accordance with applicable 

law, the Code of Audit Practice published by the National Audit Office on behalf of the Comptroller and 

Auditor General (the “Code of Audit Practice”) and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland). 

Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board’s Ethical Standards for Auditors

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements sufficient 

to give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from material misstatement, whether 

caused by fraud or error. This includes an assessment of whether the accounting policies are appropriate to 

the Authority’s circumstances and have been consistently applied and adequately disclosed; the 

reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by the Executive Director (Chief Finance Officer); 

and the overall presentation of the financial statements. In addition, we read all the financial and non-

financial information in the Chief Financial Officer’s Narrative Report and the Annual Governance 

Statement to identify material inconsistencies with the audited financial statements and to identify any 

information that is apparently materially incorrect based on, or materially inconsistent with, the knowledge 

acquired by us in the course of performing the audit. If we become aware of any apparent material 

misstatements or inconsistencies we consider the implications for our report.

Opinion on financial statements

In our opinion:

• the financial statements present a true and fair view of the financial position of the Authority as at 31 

March 2017 and of its expenditure and income for the year then ended; and

• the financial statements have been prepared properly in accordance with the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of 

Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2016/17 and applicable law.

Opinion on other matters

In our opinion, the other information published together with the audited financial statements in the Chief 

Financial Officer’s Narrative Report and the Annual Governance Statement for the financial year for which 

the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the audited financial statements.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We are required to report to you if:

• in our opinion the Annual Governance Statement does not comply with the guidance included in 

‘Delivering Good Governance in Local Government: Framework (2016)’ published by CIPFA and 

SOLACE; or

• we have reported a matter in the public interest under section 24 of the Act in the course of, or at the 

conclusion of the audit; or

• we have made a written recommendation to the Authority under section 24 of the Act in the course of, 

or at the conclusion of the audit; or

• we have exercised any other special powers of the auditor under the Act.

We have nothing to report in respect of the above matters

Appendices

P
age 44



© 2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report for High Peak Borough Council  |  2016/17 37

Conclusion on the Authority’s arrangements to secure value for money through economic, efficient 

and effective use of its resources

Respective responsibilities of the Authority and auditor

The Authority is responsible for putting in place proper arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and 

effectiveness in its use of resources, to ensure proper stewardship and governance, and to review regularly 

the adequacy and effectiveness of these arrangements.

We are required under Section 20(1)(c) of the Act to be satisfied that the Authority has made proper 

arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources. We are not required 

to consider, nor have we considered, whether all aspects of the Authority's arrangements for securing 

economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources are operating effectively.

Scope of the review of the Authority's arrangements to secure value for money through economic, 

efficient and effective use of its resources

We have undertaken our review in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice prepared by the Comptroller 

and Auditor General as required by the Act (the "Code"), having regard to the guidance on the specified 

criteria issued by the Comptroller and Auditor General in November 2015, as to whether the Authority had 

proper arrangements to ensure it took properly informed decisions and deployed resources to achieve 

planned and sustainable outcomes for taxpayers and local people. The Comptroller and Auditor General 

determined these criteria as those necessary for us to consider under the Code in satisfying ourselves whether 

the Authority put in place proper arrangements to secure value for money through the economic, efficient 

and effective use of its resources for the year ended 31 March 2017.

We planned our work in accordance with the Code. Based on our risk assessment, we undertook such work 

as we considered necessary to form a view on whether in all significant respects the Authority has put in 

place proper arrangements to secure value for money through economic, efficient and effective use of its 

resources.

Conclusion 

On the basis of our work, having regard to the guidance on the specified criteria issued by the Comptroller 

and Auditor General in November 2016, we are satisfied that in all significant respects the Authority put in 

place proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources for the 

year ended 31 March 2017.

Certificate

We certify that we have completed the audit of the financial statements of the Authority in accordance with 

the requirements of the Act and the Code of Audit Practice.

[Signature]

Phil W Jones

for and on behalf of Grant Thornton UK LLP, Appointed Auditor

The Colmore Building

20 Colmore Circus

BIRMINGHAM

B4 6AT

[Date of issue]

Appendices

P
age 45



© 2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report for High Peak Borough Council  |  2016/17 

© 2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights served. 

'Grant Thornton' refers to the brand under which the Grant Thornton 
member firms provide assurance, tax and advisory services to their 
clients and/or refers to one or more member firms, as the context 
requires. 

Grant Thornton UK LLP is a member firm of Grant Thornton 
International LTD (GTIL). GTIL and the member firms are not a 
worldwide partnership. GTIL and each member firm is a separate 
legal entity. Services are delivered by the member firms. GTIL does 
not provide services to clients. GTIL, and its member firms are not 
agents of, and do not obligate, one another and are not liable for 
one another's acts or omissions. 

grant-thornton.co.uk

P
age 46



 

  

 
          

HIGH PEAK BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

Report to the Audit and Regulatory Committee 
 

27th September 2017 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Appendices attached:  
Appendix A: Strategic Risks (by exception) 
Appendix B: Operational Risks (by exception) 
 
 
1.        Reason for the Report  
 
1.1 The purpose of the report is to allow the robust scrutiny of the Council’s risk 

management arrangements in accordance with generally accepted good 
practice.   

 
 
2. Recommendations 
 
2.1 That the committee note the Council’s current risk position and the mitigation 

plans summarised within Appendix A (strategic risks) and Appendix B 
(operational risks). 

 
 
3. Executive Summary 
 
3.1  The Council’s strategic, operational and project risk registers are reviewed by 

the Audit and Regulatory Committee on an exception basis. This report is 
based upon the Council’s position as at June 2017.    

 
3.2 The latest analysis of the strategic risk register reveals that the Council has 

identified and assessed 14 strategic risks, of which 29% are rated as 'high' 
and therefore above the Council’s risk tolerance threshold. The four ‘high’ 
rated risks are listed in full at Appendix A.    

 
3.3 The operational risk registers reveal that the Council has identified and 

TITLE: Risk Management Update (overview of 
strategic, operational and project risks)     

 
EXECUTIVE COUNCILLOR: Cllr Emily Thrane – Corporate Services 

  
CONTACT OFFICER: Vanessa Higgins - Information Business 

Partner 
   

WARDS INVOLVED:  Non-specific 

Page 47

Agenda Item 6



 

  

assessed 31 operational risks in total, of which 19% are rated as ‘high’ and 
therefore above the Council’s risk tolerance thresholds. The six risks falling 
within the ‘high’ category are listed in full at Appendix B. 

 
3.4 The new project risk registers (five to date) have risk profiles that are all within 

the Council’s tolerance thresholds, with no ‘high’ rated risks: 
 

 0% Critical  

 0% High   

 25% Medium – 5 risks 

 75% Low – 15 risks 
 
 
4. Evaluation of Options 
 
4.1 There are no options to consider 
 
 
5. How this report links to Corporate Priorities  
 
5.1 Risk management impacts on all service areas and therefore links to each of 

the Council’s Corporate Plan aims.    
 
 
6. Implications 
 

6.1
  

Community Safety - (Crime and Disorder Act 1998) 
None 
 

6.2 Workforce 
None  
 

6.3 Equality and Diversity/Equality Impact Assessment 
This report has been prepared in accordance with the Council's 
Diversity and Equality Policies 

 
6.4 

 
Financial Considerations 
Effective risk management contributes to financial objectives  

 
6.5 

 
Legal 
None 
 

6.6 Sustainability 
None 
 

6.7 
 
 

Internal and External Consultation 
None 

6.8 
 
 
 

Risk Assessment 
The Council’s risk registers are a critical element in the Council’s 
Risk Management Framework.   

Page 48



 

  

 
ANDREW P STOKES 

Executive Director (Transformation) & Chief Finance Officer 
 
Background Papers Location Contact details 

Risk Registers – June 2017  
 

Buxton Town Hall Information Business Partner 
Vanessa.higgins@highpeak.gov.uk  
Tel Ext 4057 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

 

Page 49

mailto:Vanessa.higgins@highpeak.gov.uk


 

  

7. Background and Introduction 
 
7.1 The Council ensures that it undertakes a deliberate and systematic 

identification of the key risks that might prevent, degrade, delay or enhance 
the achievement of its objectives and priorities. The Council's Risk 
Management Strategy sets out the process for undertaking this on an ongoing 
basis.  

 
7.2 In addition to the identification of risks, managers also have to quantify them in 

terms of likelihood and potential impact. The risks are then recorded in the 
Council's risk registers. These have three aspects – strategic, operational and 
project risks.  

 
7.3 Under the Risk Management Strategy, the Council’s ‘risk tolerance’ threshold 

is set along the border between ‘medium’ and ‘high’ rated residual risks. The 
strategy stipulates that mitigating actions should be identified for all risks that 
exceed this threshold. 

 
7.4 The Council’s strategic, operational and project risk registers are reviewed on 

a quarterly basis and reported into the Corporate Risk Management Group 
and the Audit and Regulatory Committee on an exception basis. The 
appendices provide details of all risks that have been rated as ‘high’ or above, 
and therefore beyond the Council’s risk tolerance threshold.   

 
 
8. Strategic Risks 
 
8.1 The June 2017 analysis of the strategic risk register reveals that the Council 

has identified and assessed 14 strategic risks, of which 29% are rated as 'high' 
and therefore above the Council’s risk tolerance threshold. There are also two 
opportunity risks within the register – New Homes Bonus and Business Rates 
Retention -  from which the Council is aiming to maximise the financial 
opportunities they present for the area. 
 

8.2 The Council’s risk profile is displayed below and shows an increase of one 
additional ‘medium’ rated alliance risk, which addresses the governance and 
internal control arrangements for phase II implementation of AES Ltd.    

 

Residual Risk Rating High Peak 
Risks 

Alliance 
Risks 

Total 
Risks 

Critical - - - 

High 1 3 4 

Medium 3 5 8 

Low 1 1 2 

Total Risks 14 

     
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 50



 

  

 
 

8.2 The four high rated risks are mapped on the risk matrix above. financial and 
regeneration project type risks still make up the vast majority of risks within the 
Strategic Risk Register.     
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Impact 

L
ik

e
li

h
o

o
d

 
 1 2 3 4 5 

5
     

     
4

     
   1  

HRA Business 
Plan (financial / 

regulatory 
reform) 

 

3
     

   1 
 

Medium Term 
Financial Plan  

1 
 

Investment 
into assets 

and long term 
planning 

2
    

    1   
Safeguarding 

duty  
(legal 

obligations) 

1
     

     

Page 51



 

  

 
9. Operational Risks  
 
9.1 The June 2017 analysis of the operational risk registers reveals that the 

Council has identified and assessed 31 Operational Risks in total, of which 
19% are rated as ‘high’ and therefore above the Council’s risk tolerance 
thresholds. There have been some changes within individual risk registers: 

 

 Visitor Services - removal of the service review risk  

 Operational Services – downgrading of fleet risk from medium to low due 
to ability to spot hire vehicles in the short term 

 Regulatory / Environmental Services – downgrading of discretionary 
housing funding risk from medium to low due to full allocation of funding. 

      
9.2 The six risks falling within the ‘high’ category are listed in full at Appendix B. A 

full breakdown of the Council’s operational risk profile is given below: 
 

Residual Risk 
Rating 

High Peak Risks Alliance 
Risks 

Total Risks 

Critical - - - 

High 1 5 6 

Medium 1 6 7 

Low 1 17 18 

Total Risks 31 

    
9.3 The greatest number of operational risks sits within the Operational Services 

area, which encompasses waste and recycling; street scene, leisure, 
horticulture and  housing maintenance.  

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9.4 An analysis of the alignment of risk to our corporate objectives shows that 

most operational risks relate to the use of resources in order to achieve value 
for money.   

 
10. Project Risks 
 

Page 52



 

  

10.1 Projects committed through the Corporate Plan will be included in the strategic 
risk register and other start and finish projects are being picked up through the 
project risk registers. It is early days following the implementation of the 
revised project management approach and to date there have been full risk 
assessments for the following projects: 

 

 Digital Portal 

 Derbyshire Fraud Initiative 

 Committee Management System 

 Accelerated Housing Delivery Programme 

 Hybrid Mail 
 

10.2 The project risks identified so far are all below the Council’s tolerance 
thresholds with no ‘high’ rated risks: 

 

 0% Critical  

 0% High   

 25% Medium – 5 risks 

 75% Low – 15 risks 
 
 
 

Page 53



 

  

   
Strategic Risks (by exception)              Appendix A 
AMT 
Owner  

Ref Risk Description 
(vulnerability) 

Current Controls Impact Likelihood Further Mitigation Plans  Date 

Andrew 
Stokes 

SR2 Delivery of MTFP 
through the 
Efficiency and 
Rationalisation 
Strategy 
 

Effective programme and project 
management methodology for 
the transformation programme. 
Performance Management 
Framework monitors the 
achievement of Council Aims. 

4 3 1. Monthly Transformation Board 
meetings to oversee key projects 
linked to the efficiency and 
rationalisation strategy e.g. housing 
delivery programmes to facilitate 
growth and the various income 
generation projects. 2. Accelerated 
procurement projects including 
environmental services, leisure 
centres and facilities management. 

1. Ongoing 
2. As per project 

milestones 

Mark 
Trillo 

SR10 Safeguarding 
children and 
vulnerable adults – 
fulfilling our legal 
duty 

1. Revised Joint Policy in place 
for Safeguarding Children and 
Vulnerable Adults. 2. Council is 
a member of the District 
Safeguarding Network (Staffs).3 
All staff have been briefed on 
the safeguarding policy and 
identified staff have received 
level 1 training in safeguarding 
children. 4. Training of adult 
safeguarding has been provided 
to key staff members.  

5 2 There is an ongoing rolling 
programme of actions in place and 
District Network meetings are 
attended on a regular basis.  

Ongoing 

Andrew 
Stokes 

SR11 HRA Business 
Plan (financial and 
regulatory reform) 

1. Engaged Sector to advise on 
the HRA Business Plan 2. 
Increased levels of assurance 
on Capital investment 
programme 3. Strategic review 
of housing management function 
completed. 4. In depth review of 
Capital Programme 5. Signed up 
to voluntary code of practice. 6.  
Full self assessment against the 
voluntary code of practice via 
the newly established working 

4 4 1. Carry out stock condition surveys 
and assess financial performance 
of housing category types. 2. HRA 
review underway – focusing on all 
areas of the HRA with assigned 
stream leads over a 12 month 
period. Reporting mechanism in 
place to a Member/Officer working 
group.  
 

1. Underway 2. 
Underway  

P
age 54



 

  

AMT 
Owner  

Ref Risk Description 
(vulnerability) 

Current Controls Impact Likelihood Further Mitigation Plans  Date 

group. 7. Action Plan from 
Position Statement with re-
established priorities for the 
HRA. 8. Short term deficit 
eliminated. 9. HRA Business 
Plan and Financial Improvement 
Plan agreed.  

Andrew 
Stokes 

SR15 Investment into 
council assets and 
long term planning 
 

The completion of a full building 
condition survey of all public 
buildings. High level report 
issued to Corporate Select in 
July 16. Working Group being 
established to assist with the 
formulation of a new strategic 
asset management plan.  
 

5 3 Complete essential H&S and 
structural works to properties whilst 
the strategic review is ongoing. A 
12 month process to undertake the 
analysis and decisions required for 
the implementation of a new 
strategy. The health and safety 
works are on-going and the asset 
management plan is currently being 
finalised. 

Sept 2017 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 55



 

  

Operational Risks (by exception)             Appendix B 
Service  Ref Risk Description 

(vulnerability) 
Current Controls Impact Likelihood Further Mitigation Plans  Date 

Assets AS1 Accuracy of stock 
condition data across 
public buildings and 
housing stock 

Public buildings surveys 
completed and findings 
presented July 2016.  

4 4 1. Housing stock condition 
survey approval in July 2016. 
2. Working group to be 
established to review findings 
over the next 12 months. 
MTFP approved Feb 2017. 
Housing Stock Condition 
survey to commence in May 
2017 

1. Stock Condition 
(Housing) to be 
completed April 
2018. 

Democratic 
and 
Community 

DC1 Breach of equality 
regulations 

1. Equality impact 
assessments undertaken                           
2.Equalities policy in place                                              
3. Equality impact has been 
written into the new project 
methodology currently being 
introduced. 
 

4 3 1. Training will be undertaken 
with all staff as part of the 
training passport initiative 
and also with Members. Info-
aware training now complete, 
this platform will be used in 
the new year to launch the 
training.                                
2.Equality champions have 
been assigned and will 
undertake more detailed 
training.                            

1. Sept 2017           
2. Sept 2017                                                                                                                            

Finance and 
Procurement 

FP1 Risk to income 
stream/budgetary 
overspend 

1. Budget monitoring                                                            
2. Efficiency programme                    
3. Consider latest intelligence 
for budget reviews                        
4.Contingency reserve in place  

4 3 1. Ensure there is a provision 
in the General Fund                             
2. Monitor budget position 
and target specific areas                              
3. Resourcing of efficiency 
and transformation process 

Ongoing continual 
process 

 FP2 Pension Liability risk 
to budget 

1. Monitoring of pension 
liability                   2. Careful 
consideration of pension cost 
implications when awarding 
contracts (externalisation of 
services)                                                     
3. Base budgets on latest 
intelligence                            4. 

4 3 1. Flag up potential long term 
risks and manage carefully 
as part of the medium term 
financial planning process.                                                            
2. The LGPS triennial 
valuation outcomes have 
been incorporated into the 
updated MTFP in Feb 2017.  

1. Ongoing                                                                                                                                                                                      
2. Ongoing 
 

P
age 56



 

  

Service  Ref Risk Description 
(vulnerability) 

Current Controls Impact Likelihood Further Mitigation Plans  Date 

Manage pressure through the 
Financial Planning process.                         
5. Close liaison with pensions 
authority                                                                
6. Careful workforce planning  

The next review will take 
place in 3 years. 
 

FP3 Treasury 
Management 
failure(General) 

1. Professional training of staff                           
2. Professional advice and 
support 3. Careful control of 
lending list including 
investment limits on institutions 
through formally adopted 
Treasury Management 
strategy. 4. Full compliance 
with the Chartered Institute of 
Public Finance and 
Accountancy's (CIPFA) Code 
of Practice on Treasury 
Management 

5 2 1. Carry out regular credit 
checks and react to latest 
developments in treasury 
management risk 

Ongoing continual 
process 

Visitor V2 Implications of the 
closure of the 
Octagon 

Communications Strategy 
around the Octagon closure. 
Project Board with relevant 
sub-groups. 

4 5 Continued hire of marquee to 
act as substitute venue to 
hold events. Octagon work 
scheduled for completion in 
Feb 2018.  
 

Feb 2018 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 57



T
his page is intentionally left blank



  

 
 

HIGH PEAK BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

Report to Audit & Regulatory Committee 
 

27th September 2017 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  
 
 
 

 
 

 
Appendix A Attached: 
Treasury Management Mid-Year Update Report – 31st August 2017 
 
 

1. Reason for the Report 
 

1.1. To allow the robust scrutiny of the Council’s treasury management 
performance in 2017/18 in compliance with the Chartered Institute of 
Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) Code of Practice on Treasury 
Management 2009 and generally accepted good practice. 

 
 

2. Recommendation 
 

2.1. That the committee note the current treasury management position (as at 
31st August 2017). 

 
 
3. Executive Summary 

 
3.1. The Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) Code 

of Practice on Treasury Management 2009 was adopted by the Council in 
March 2010. This Council fully complies with its requirements, one of 
which is to produce at least one mid-year operational report. 

 

TITLE:   Treasury Management Update:  Mid-Year 
Report 2017/18 

 
EXECUTIVE COUNCILLOR:  Cllr Emily Thrane – Executive Councillor 

for Finance & Corporate Services 
 
CONTACT OFFICERS:  Claire Hazeldene – Finance & Procurement 

Manager 
 Emily Bennetts – Finance Business 

Partner 
 
WARDS INVOLVED:  Non-specific 

Page 59

Agenda Item 7



  

3.2. This report comprises the following: 
 

 The latest interest rate forecast; 

 Investment income earned to date and projected for 2017/18; 

 The current investment portfolio; 

 The capital programme update, borrowing portfolio with projected 
borrowing costs for 2017/18 and debt rescheduling options; and 

 Compliance against Prudential and Treasury indicators set in the 
Treasury Management Strategy 2017/18. 

 
3.3. The main headlines include: 
 

 The Bank of England base rate remained unchanged at 0.25%. 

 The investment income budget is expected to be on target as the 
current low interest environment was anticipated. 

 The borrowing costs budget for external borrowing is currently 
expected to be to budget overall. However, a saving to the HRA of 
£60,000 is anticipated; with a corresponding overspend to the General 
Fund as a result of the net charge attributed to each fund for borrowing 
and investments under the one pool approach.  This is dependent on 
the actual borrowing requirment for the General Fund. 

 The average return on investments achieved by the Council during the 
period to 1st July to 31st August was 0.47%. This compares favorably 
to short-term industry benchmarks. 

 The Council’s investment portfolio totalled £19.7million spread across 
seven separate institutions as at 31st August 2017. 

 The Council’s total level of debt as at 31st August was £72,236,303 
(including finance leases) and the average rate of borrowing is 3.80%.   

 Capita plc announced on 23rd June 2017 that it had exchanged 
contracts with Link Group for the sale of the division Capita Asset 
Services, the Council’s treasury management advisors. The Council 
has been assured of Capita Asset Services’ ongoing commitment to 
client service and that there will be no disruption to service levels or 
the teams who provide support. 

 
 
4. How this report links to Corporate Priorities 

 
4.1. An effective treasury management function is critical in safeguarding and 

effectively managing the financial resources at the Council’s disposal. 
Sufficient financial resources are required to deliver and underpin all of the 
Council’s main priorities. 

 
 
  

Page 60



  

5. Options and Analysis 
 

5.1. This report sets out the Treasury Management position for High Peak 
Borough Council for 2017/18 to date and the projected outturn. As such it 
is a statement of fact and there are no options. 

 
 
6. Implications 

 
6.1. Community Safety - (Crime and Disorder Act 1998)  
 None 
 

6.2. Workforce  
 None 
 
6.3. Equality and Diversity/ Equality Impact Assessment  

This report has been prepared in accordance with the Council's Equality 
and Diversity policies. 

 

6.4. Financial Considerations 
 Financial considerations are embedded throughout the report.  
  

6.5. Legal      
None 

 

6.6. Sustainability    
None 

 

6.7. Internal and External Consultation 
None 

 

6.8. Risk Assessment 
There are a number of inherent financial risks associated with Treasury 
Management activity, not least the potential for loss of interest and/ or 
deposits. For this reason, the Council engages the services of external 
Treasury Management advisors, Capita Asset Services (‘Capita’). 

 
Investment and borrowing decisions are made in accordance with the 
Council’s formally adopted Treasury Management Strategy. That Strategy 
includes a number of risk management features such as the overriding 
priority that security of deposit takes precedence over return on 
investment. 

 
 

 

Page 61



  

ANDREW P STOKES 
Executive Director (Transformation) & Chief Finance Officer 

Background Papers Location Contacts 

‘Treasury Management – Governance 
and Scrutiny Arrangements’                           
(Audit & Regulatory Committee 
September 2009) 
 

‘Treasury Management Strategy 
2017/18 
(Audit & Regulatory Committee 
February 2017) 

Finance & Performance,  
Town Hall, Buxton 

Claire Hazeldene 
Finance & Procurement Manager 
Tel. 01538 395400 Ext. 4191 
 
Emily Bennetts 
Finance Business Partner 
Tel. 01538 395400 Ext. 4186 
 
 

Page 62



  

Appendix A 
          
            

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 

Treasury Management Update  
31st August 2017 

 
 

 
1. Introduction  
 
2. Economic Forecast – Interest Rates 

 
3. Investment Income 

 
4. Investment Portfolio 

 
5. Capital Programme Update & Borrowing Position 

 
6. Prudential Indicators 

 
7. Treasury Management Advisors 

 
8. MiFID II 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

High Peak Borough Council 
 

Working for our community 

Page 63



  

1. Introduction  
 

1.1. Treasury Management is defined as “The management of the Authority’s 
investments and cash flows, its banking, money market and capital market 
transactions; the effective control of the risks associated with those 
activities; and the pursuit of optimum performance consistent with those 
risks”. 
 

1.2. The Council has adopted CIPFA’s revised Code of Practice for Treasury 
Management (2009) which recommends that Members should be briefed on 
Treasury Management activities at least twice a year. 

 
1.3. The Audit & Regulatory Committee has delegated responsibility for 

scrutinising the treasury function.  The Committee’s role includes approval 
of the annual treasury management strategy and scrutiny of operational 
treasury management reports.  Decisions taken by the Audit & Regulatory 
Committee are reported to full Council. 

 
1.4. The Treasury Management Strategy Statement (TMSS) for 2017/18 was 

approved by Council on 14th February 2017.  This report details treasury 
management performance up to the 31st August 2017 and projects forward 
for the remainder of the financial year. 

 
2. Economic Forecast – Interest Rates 

 
2.1. The latest base rate and PWLB (Public Works Loan Board) forecast from 

the Council’s treasury advisers, Capita Asset Services (‘Capita’), is shown 
below: 

 

% 
Sep-
17 

Dec-
17 

Mar-
18 

Jun-
18 

Sep-
18 

Dec-
18 

Mar-
19 

Jun-
19 

Sep-
19 

Dec-
19 

Mar-
20 

Bank Rate 0.25 0.25 0.25 0.25 0.25 0.25 0.25 0.50 0.50 0.75 0.75 

5yr PWLB 
rate 

1.40 1.50 1.60 1.70 1.70 1.80 1.80 1.90 1.90 2.00 2.00 

10r PWLB 
rate 

2.10 2.20 2.30 2.30 2.40 2.40 2.50 2.50 2.60 2.60 2.70 

25yr PWLB 
rate 

2.80 2.90 2.90 3.00 3.00 3.10 3.10 3.20 3.20 3.30 3.30 

50yr PWLB 
rate 

2.60 2.70 2.70 2.80 2.80 2.90 2.90 3.00 3.00 3.10 3.10 

 
2.2. Following the latest Bank of England quarterly Inflation Report on 3rd 

August, Capita has reviewed their interest forecasts. They remain 
unchanged as they have “seen very little in the way of any material change 
of any significance over the last three months to warrant making any 
changes”. 
 

2.3. The extent of uncertainties at the current time continues to mean that the 
interest rate forecast is likely to be subject to changes. 

Page 64



  

 
3. Investment Income  

 
3.1. Interest earned on investment deposits up to 31st August 2017 totalled 

£31,900. The Council has budgeted to receive £64,720 in investment 
income in 2017/18. The budget was set with the expectation that the low 
interest environment would continue, therefore the interest receipts are 
expected to be on target. 
 

3.2. Average interest rates achieved on the Council’s investments are shown in 
the table below; these compare favourably to the LIBID rates, the 
recognised industry benchmark rates: 

 

Comparator 
Average 
Rate Q1 

Average 
Rate  

Jul-Aug 

HPBC Total 
 

HPBC Long-term fixed (>364 days) 
 

HPBC Short-term fixed (<364 days) 
 

HPBC Short-term instant access  
 

Benchmarks (Capita) 
 

*LIBID 7 Day Rate 
 

*LIBID 3 Month Rate 
 

*LIBID 6 Month Rate 
 

*LIBID 12 Month Rate 
 

Current Base Rate 
 

0.44% 
 

- 
 

0.55% 
 

0.35% 
 

 
 

0.11% 
 

0.19% 
 

0.33% 
 

0.54% 
 

0.25% 
 

0.47% 
 

- 
 

0.56% 
 

0.36% 
 

 
 

0.11% 
 

0.16% 
 

0.30% 
 

0.50% 
 

0.25% 
 

*LIBID = London Inter Bank Bid Rate 
 

3.3. The table below highlights the level of investment activity and the rates 
obtained in the period from 1st July to 31st August 2017.  Investments are 
made in line with Capita’s creditworthiness guidance and the duration limits 
applied to each colour banding. 

 

Institution 
Country of 
Domicile 

Amount Length Rate 

Nationwide Building Society UK £1,000,000 6 months 0.32% 

Lloyds Bank UK £1,000,000 6 months 0.55% 

Goldman Sachs UK £2,000,000 6 months 0.585% 

     

Instant Access Cash 
(Instant Access Accounts & Money 
Market Funds) 

UK £1,356,000 
(daily average) 

 0.36% 

 
3.4. The rates achieved by the Council vary by institution, by duration of 

investment and by the timing of when the investment was made. The 
Council’s lending criteria restricts the number of financial institutions that 
are eligible to be on the lending list, and the amount that can be invested 
with eligible counterparties (and counterparty groups) at any one time.  

Page 65



  

 
3.5. The majority of the investment portfolio is held on a short-term basis (<1 

year). The Council continues to utilise same day access business accounts, 
money market funds, fixed term deposits and certificates of deposits (via 
the use of custodian King & Shaxson) which offer competitive rates and 
access to banks that would not necessarily deal direct with the Authority for 
the sums invested. 

 
4. Investment Portfolio 

 
4.1. The Council manages its investments in-house and invests with financial 

institutions meeting the Council’s approved lending criteria. The Council’s 
investment portfolio at 31st August 2017 totalled £19,651,000 as shown in 
the table below: 
 
 

Financial Institution 
Country of 
Domicile 

Amount 
Maximum recommended 

lending duration 

Goldman Sachs UK £4,000,000 RED (6 months) 

Santander UK UK £4,000,000 RED (6 months) 

Money Market Funds UK £3,700,000 WHITE (12 months) 

Lloyds Bank UK £3,150,000 RED (6 months) 

Nationwide Building Society UK £2,000,000 RED (6 months) 

NatWest Bank UK £1,801,000 BLUE (12 months) 

Royal Bank of Scotland UK £1,000,000 BLUE (12 months) 

TOTAL  £19,651,000  

 
4.2. The maximum investment term, as recommended by Capita, is shown by 

colour banding in the table below: 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Colour Banding 
Maximum 

Duration of 
Investment 

UK 
Banks 

International 
Banks 

PURPLE Up to 2 Years £5.5m £4.0m 

ORANGE Up to 1 Year £4.9m £3.3m 

RED Up to 6 Months £4.0m £2.7m 

GREEN Up to 100 Days £3.5m £2.2m 

    
BLUE (Part & fully nationalised 

financial institutions) 
Up to 1 Year £5.5m n/a 

BLUE (NatWest) Up to 1 Year £8.2m n/a 

    
Money Market Funds Up to 1 Year £4.9m n/a 

WHITE (Lending to the 
Government / Local Authorities) 

Up to 1 Year n/a n/a 

Over 1 Year £4.0m n/a 

Page 66



  

 
4.3. Group limits are also applied: 
 

Category 

Portfolio 
(% of 

highest 
balance*) 

Individual 
Principal 

Limit 

Portfolio % 
increased by 

50% 

Group 
Principal 

Limit 

Blue 20% £5.5m 30% £8.2m 

Purple 20% £5.5m 30% £8.2m 

Gold 18% £4.9m 27% £7.4m 

Red 15% £4.0m 23% £6.3m 

Green 13% £3.5m 20% £5.5m 

  
4.4. The average level of funds that have been available for investment up to 

31st August 2017 was £16.8 million.  Investments are generally made up of 
short-term cash and core cash. Short-term cash is dependent on the timing 
of major payments e.g. precept payments, salaries and creditor payments, 
and major receipts e.g. receipt of grants and Council Tax direct debits.  
Core cash is dependent on capital programme commitments.  

 
5. Capital Programme Update & Borrowing Position 
 
 Capital Programme Update 
 
5.1. The table below provides current projections for capital expenditure and 

funding: 
 

 Original Estimate Revised Estimate 

Total Capital Expenditure £9,801,000 £10,270,000 

    General Fund £5,865,000 £6,123,000* 

    HRA £3,936,000 £4,147,000* 

Funded by:   

    Capital Receipts £1,031,000 £1,031,000 

    External Funding £471,000 £527,000 

    Major Repairs Reserve £1,550,000 £2,099,000 

    HRA Contribution £1,997,000 £1,659,000 

2017/18 Net Financing Requirement £4,752,000 £4,954,000 

   

Capital Financing Requirement   

  Opening CFR £78,974,000 £78,784,000 

    PLUS Net Financing Requirement £4,752,000 £4,954,000 

    LESS Minimum Revenue Provision (£2,088,000) (£2,085,000) 

  Closing CFR £81,638,000 £81,653,000** 

    General Fund £25,779,000 £25,794,000 

    Housing £55,859,000 £55,859,000 
*Includes approved budget carry forwards from 2016/17                                                                            
**Includes £286,500 Finance Leases 

 
 

Page 67



  

5.2. The Net Financing Requirement on 2017/18 expenditure is now estimated 
at £4,954,000: this increase relates to carried forward general fund capital 
schemes. 
 

5.3. The Capital Financing Requirement (CFR) is a prudential indicator set to 
ensure that the Council's capital investment plans are affordable. The CFR 
represents the total outstanding capital expenditure which has not yet been 
paid for from either revenue or capital resources. It is essentially a measure 
of the Council's underlying need to borrow to finance capital expenditure 
and is derived by aggregating specified items for the Council's balance 
sheet. The closing CFR is in line with the Capital Financing Requirement 
set in the Treasury Strategy Statement. On the basis of the latest forecasts, 
the Council's capital investment plans remain affordable. 
 
Borrowing Position 

 
5.4. In accordance with the Local Government Act 2003, it is a statutory duty of 

the Council to determine and keep under review how much it can afford to 
borrow.  Therefore, the Council establishes ‘Affordable Borrowing Limits’ as 
part of the prudential indicators within the approved Treasury Management 
Strategy Statement. 
 

5.5. The Council’s total outstanding debt as at 31st August 2017 is £72,236,303, 
as detailed in the table below: 

 

Lender 
External 

Borrowing 
Average 

Interest Rate 
Maturity period 

Public Works Loan Board £54,025,404 3.76% between 1 and 50 years 

Market Loans £12,800,000 4.57% between 5 and 50 years 

Local Authority Loans £5,000,000 2.50% up to 2 years 

Finance Leases £410,899 n/a Up to 4 years 

Total £72,236,303 3.80%  

 

5.6. The ‘operational boundary’ (£85,997,000) and ‘authorised limit’ 
(£88,497,000) indicators govern the maximum level of external borrowing 
available to the Council to fund the capital programme. The current level of 
borrowing is within prudential limits. 
 

5.7. The revised capital expenditure budget includes a borrowing requirement of 
£4.9m (was £4.7m). There has been no ‘new’ borrowing undertaken to date. 
The treasury team will continue to monitor the appropriate time to externally 
borrow based on the profile of spend and opportunities to ‘internally’ borrow, 
considering the movement in interest rates and the cost of carry of any 
borrowings taken. 

 
 
 

Page 68



  

5.8. The Council’s general fund and HRA has budgeted to incur £1,425,230 and 
£3,381,630 respectively in interest charges and other financing costs in 
2017/18. The interest costs on external borrowing are expected to be to 
budget overall.  

 
5.9. However, under the ‘one pool’ approach to borrowing which the Council 

adopts, the share of interest costs attributable to the general fund is 
forecast to be £60,000 more than budgeted; with a corresponding 
underspend on the HRA.  This is due to the repayment of loans during 
2016/17, which has taken the Council into an under-borrowed position. 

 
5.10. This reduces the overall interest rate chargeable to the HRA than was 

originally budgeted (as it now includes a rate associated with the internal 
borrowing element, i.e. investment income foregone, which reduces the 
overall interest rate chargeable).   

 
5.11. However, the forecast is based on the assumption that the General Fund 

borrowing requirement is £4.9m and new borrowing will be undertaken – 
this will be monitored throughout the year. 

 
5.12. Attention must also be given to the maturity profile of the loans to ensure 

maturity dates are evenly spread so that the Council is not exposed to a 
substantial re-financing requirement at any one time, when interest rates 
are high. The graph below details the maturity profile of current loans. 

 

 
 
5.13. Debt rescheduling is the reorganisation of existing debt in such a way as to 

amend the debt repayments, reduce the principal sum borrowed, alter the 
degree of volatility of debt or vary the interest payable, thus managing the 
risk.  The treasury team, along with Capita, continually monitor prospects 
for debt rescheduling to achieve overall financial benefit to the Council. 
 

 -

 5,000,000

 10,000,000

 15,000,000

 20,000,000

 25,000,000

 30,000,000

Less than
1 year

1 - 2
years

2 - 5
years

6 - 10
years

11- 20
years

21 - 30
years

31 - 40
years

41 - 50
years

Greater
than 50
years

Debt Maturity Profile 

Page 69



  

5.14. No rescheduling has taken place during 2017/18 to date.  The Council will 
work with Capita to identify any potential debt rescheduling options – taking 
account of the premium the Council would expect to pay on early 
redemption compared to the potential interest savings.   

 

6. Prudential Indicators 
 

6.1. The prudential & treasury indicators (as set in the Treasury Management 
Strategy 2017/18) have not been breached during the year. 
 

7. Treasury Management Advisors 
 

7.1. Capita plc announced on 23rd June 2017 that it had exchanged contracts 
with Link Group for the sale of the division Capita Asset Services, the 
Council’s Treasury Management advisors. Link Group are a market leading 
provider of financial administration solutions with significant presence 
throughout Australasia, Asia, Africa, the Middle East and Europe. Capita 
Asset Services also hold market leading positions across all parts of its 
business, with a presence in complementary jurisdictions in the UK, Europe 
and Jersey. 
 

7.2. The Council has been assured that future plans are all underpinned by 
Capita Asset Services’ ongoing commitment to client service and further 
investment into their infrastructure, and that there will be no disruption to 
our service levels or support. 

 
7.3. Updates will continue to be given as the exchange moves through to formal 

completion which is expected later this year following regulatory approvals. 
There have been no further formal updates from Capita to date, but the 
latest expectation is for the sale to complete in October 2017 and has been 
assured again that, for our purposes, business continues as normal. 
 

8. MiFID II 
 

8.1. The Markets in Financial Instruments Directive (MiFID) is the EU legislation 
that regulates firms who provide services to clients linked to ‘financial 
instruments’ (share, bonds, units in collective investment schemes and 
derivatives), and venues where those instruments are traded. The new 
MiFID II environment is set to commence on 3rd January 2018. 
 

8.2. Under the new regime, Local Authorities will be deemed “Retail” clients by 
default. They will have the option to “opt-up” to “Professional” client status, 
or remain as “Retail”.  

 
8.3. In order to opt-up, Local Authorities will need to meet Qualitative and 

Quantitative test criteria: 
 

Page 70



  

 The Qualitative criteria is set by each counterparty (e.g. financial 
institution, broker) that the Council wishes to trade with; 
 

 The Quantitative criteria is: 
 

1. A Local Authority has to have an investment portfolio of at least 
£10million. This is understood to be at the point of requesting to opt 
up; 
And either 

2. 10 transactions per quarter in a relevant market in the past 4 
quarters; 
Or 

3. At least 1 year of experience in a professional position in financial 
markets which requires knowledge of transactions or services 
envisaged. 

 
8.4. This change affects the Council’s dealings with Money Market Funds and 

Certificates of Deposit – simple term deposits are not covered by MiFID II. 
However, the brokers we use to access borrowing through other Local 
Authorities and some simple term deposits would also be affected as they 
could not deal with the Council as a Retail Client, only if we are able to opt-
up as a Professional Client.  
 

8.5. The Council’s average balance of investments usually exceeds £10million, 
peaking around mid-month, so it seems likely that we will be able to achieve 
the first quantitative criteria.  

 
8.6. Of the ‘either/ or’ quantitative criteria, the Council would only just be able to 

achieve criteria 2 looking at past history of transactions (money market/ 
instant access account transactions and fixed term investments and could 
fall short; however it is expected that institutions would accept the Council 
as achieving criteria 3. 

 
8.7. It is expected that application to opt-up to Professional status will be on an 

institution-by-institution basis and that each application will be slightly 
different, in form and in terms of what the qualitative criteria may be. The 
council has not received any invitations to apply to opt-up to date, but is in 
contact with the various parties on this matter, so will assess each 
application individually on receipt.  

 
8.8. The current consideration is that the Council will apply to opt-up wherever 

possible to continue to have access to the full range of counterparties that 
can currently be accessed for investments, including money market funds, 
activities through brokers and the Certificate of Deposit custody account to 
maintain a low counterparty risk through a spread portfolio. 

 
8.9. Updates on applications to opt-up to Professional status under MiFID II will 

be brought to this committee as they are available. 

Page 71



This page is intentionally left blank



 

  

 
 

HIGH PEAK BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 
 

Report to the Audit & Regulatory Committee 
 

27th September 2017 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Appendices Attached -  
Appendix 1 Audit Reports Issued Between 1st April and 31st August 2017 
Appendix 2 Internal Audit 2017/18 Progress Information as at 31st August 2017 
Appendix 3 2016/17 Audit Recommendations Implementation 
 
 
1.        Reason for the Report: 
 

1.1 The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 requires the Council to 
“undertake an effective internal audit to evaluate the effectiveness of its 
risk management, control and governance processes, taking into 
account public sector internal auditing standards or guidance”. In 
accordance with the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards, the Audit 
Manager must report periodically to the Audit Committee on the internal 
audit activity’s performance relative to its plan. 

 
 
2. Recommendation 

2.1 That the committee note the progress information contained within this 
report. 

 
 
3. Executive Summary 
 

3.1 The purpose of this report is to summarise current year performance 
information for the Council’s Internal Audit service for the 2017/18 
financial year. This includes a breakdown of audits in progress and 
completed to date, the number and classification of recommendations 
made, agreed and where applicable, implemented by management. 

TITLE: 2017/18 Internal Audit Periodic Report April 
to August 2017 

 
EXECUTIVE COUNCILLOR: Councillor Emily Thrane – Executive  
    Councillor for Finance & Corporate Services 
 
CONTACT OFFICER:  John Leak – Internal Audit Manager 
   

WARDS INVOLVED:  Non-Specific 

Page 73

Agenda Item 8



 

  

 
3.2 All audit recommendations have been agreed, and to date 100% of 

2017/18 audit recommendations that are due have been implemented. 
Where deficiencies in internal control have been identified and not 
corrected, Internal Audit are satisfied that they will be resolved in an 
appropriate manner and they will continue to monitor such cases. It 
should be noted that it is the responsibility of relevant Managers to 
implement agreed recommendations. 

 
 

4. How this report links to Corporate Priorities  
 

4.1 The assurance provided by the work of Internal Audit informs the 
Annual Governance Statement and therefore helps to confirm effective 
use of financial and other resources to ensure value for money. 

 
 
5. Options and Analysis 
 

5.1 There are no options to consider. 
 

 
6. Implications 
 

6.1
  

Community Safety - (Crime and Disorder Act 1998) 
 
None. 
 

6.2 Workforce 
 
None. 
 

6.3 Equality and Diversity/Equality Impact Assessment 
 
This report has been prepared in accordance with the Council's 
Diversity and Equality Policies. 
 

6.4 Financial Considerations 
 
None. 
 

 
6.5 Legal 

 
None. 
 

6.6 Sustainability 
 
None. 
 

6.7 Internal and External Consultation 

Page 74



 

  

 
 
 

 
None. 

6.8 
 
 
 

Risk Assessment 
 
None. 
 

 
 
 

ANDREW P STOKES 
Executive Director (Transformation) & Chief Finance Officer 

 
 
Web Links and 
Background Papers 

Location Contact details 

None N/A John Leak 
Audit Manager 
Tel: (01538) 395695 
e-mail: john.leak@staffsmoorlands.gov.uk 

 

Page 75

mailto:john.leak@staffsmoorlands.gov.uk


 

  

7. Background and Detail 
 

7.1 Introduction 
 
7.1.1 The purpose of this report is to summarise current year performance 

information for the Council’s Internal Audit service for the 2017/18 
financial year. This includes a breakdown of audits in progress and 
completed to date, the number and classification of recommendations 
made, agreed and where applicable, implemented by management. 

 
7.1.2 The work of the internal audit service is primarily based upon an annual 

risk assessed audit plan, which for the financial year 2017/18 was 
agreed by this Committee at the 18th May 2017 meeting. The Internal 
Audit service also carry out work outside of the audit plan for which a 
contingency is usually built in. This unplanned work consists mainly of 
internal control consultancy work and special investigations into 
suspected fraud and irregularity. 

 
7.2 Audits Reports Issued & Status of Agreed Recommendations 
 
7.2.1 A summary of the Audit Reports issued during the period 1st April to 31st 

August 2017 is shown in the table below. Further details of these audits 
outlining key issues and strengths and improvements are shown in 
Appendix 1. 

 
Service Audit Recommendations Assurance 

High  
Risk 

Medium 
Risk 

Low  
Risk 

Finance & 
Procurement 

Procurement 0 3 4 Satisfactory 

Finance & 
Procurement 

Housing 
Rents 

0 2 2 Satisfactory 

Operational 
Services 

Cemeteries 0 3 9 Satisfactory 

Finance & 
Procurement 

Payroll 
Expenses 

0 2 8 Satisfactory 

Organisational 
Development & 
Transformation 

Corporate 
Project 
Management 

0 0 10 Satisfactory 

 
7.2.2 A further breakdown of all of the audits in progress and completed 

during the current financial year including the current status of audit 
recommendations is detailed in Appendix 2.  All audit 
recommendations have been agreed, and to date 100% of 2017/18 
audit recommendations that are due have been implemented. Where 
deficiencies in internal control have been identified and not corrected, 
Internal Audit are satisfied that they will be resolved in an appropriate 
manner and they will continue to monitor such cases. It should be noted 
that it is the responsibility of relevant Managers to implement agreed 
recommendations. 

Page 76



 

  

 
7.2.3 Councillors will note that in addition to every individual audit 

recommendation being allocated a risk, every audit completed has 
been given an ‘assurance opinion’ based upon Internal Audit’s 
assessment of the internal control environment. These assurance 
opinions inform the annual audit opinion on the overall adequacy and 
effectiveness of the Council’s internal control environment. The control 
levels are defined as follows: 

  
Control 
Level 

Definition 

Substantial There is a robust framework of controls designed to achieve 
the objectives and controls are consistently applied. 

Satisfactory There is a sufficient framework of controls which for the 
most part, are consistently applied.  However, weakness in 
the design or inconsistent application of controls within a 
few areas put achievement of particular objectives at risk. 

Limited Weaknesses in the system or the level of non compliance 
with controls in a number of areas are such to put the 
system objectives at risk. 

Unsatisfactory There is a significant breakdown in the framework of 
controls, which leaves the system open to significant abuse 
or error. 

 
7.2.4 Appendix 3 is a summary of recommendations made in the previous 

financial year 2016/17 implemented to date. This information will keep 
Councillors informed of progress made to ensure that all previous year 
audit recommendations are implemented. Due dates for implementation 
of some previous year recommendations will fall into 2017/18 and 
beyond depending on when the audit was carried out so this appendix 
will show when those recommendations become due for 
implementation. In due course, all recommendations will fall due and it 
will be possible to clearly identify which recommendations have not 
been implemented. 

 
7.2.5 To date 96% of 2016/17 audit recommendations that are due have 

been implemented. Where deficiencies in internal control have been 
identified and not corrected, Internal Audit are satisfied that they will be 
resolved in an appropriate manner and they will continue to monitor 
such cases.  It should be noted that it is the responsibility of relevant 
Managers to implement agreed recommendations. 

 
7.3 Audits In Progress 

 
7.3.1 The status of audits that are currently in progress is shown in the table 

below. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 77



 

  

Service Audit Status 

Environmental 
Services 

DFG 
Assurance 

Audit complete. Quality control stage. 

Environmental 
Services 

Land 
Charges 

Audit in Progress. 

Development 
Services / 
Regeneration 

Conservation Audit in Progress. 

Operational 
Services 

Horticulture Audit in Progress. 

Assets Capital 
Contract 
Management 

Audit in Progress. 

Assets Housing 
Planned 
Maintenance 

Audit in Progress. 

Democratic & 
Community 
Services 

Safeguarding 
Children & 
Vulnerable 
Adults 

Audit in Progress. 

 
7.4 Progress against Audit Plan 

7.4.1 The current year to date has seen steady progress against planned 
audits and all of the audits in progress or nearing completion as 
detailed in 7.3 above will be completed soon. It is anticipated at this 
stage that a satisfactory year end position will be achieved. 

 
7.4.2 Current key progress information is summarised in the following table, 

excluding unplanned work unless otherwise stated: 
 

Summary Progress Information to 31st August 2017 

Percentage of Audit Plan completed / substantially 
completed 

16% 

Percentage of Audit Plan In Progress 16% 

Number of recommendations made (including unplanned 
work) 

43 

Percentage of recommendations agreed with Service 
Managers (including unplanned work) 

100% 

Percentage of recommendations implemented within 
agreed timescale (including unplanned work) 

100% 

 
7.4.3 Should recommendations have not been agreed, compensating 

controls exist or service managers have accepted the risk / inefficiency 
of the current system for the benefit of service delivery. 

 

Page 78



APPENDIX 1 

AUDIT REPORTS ISSUED BETWEEN 1st APRIL 2017 & 
31st  AUGUST 2017 

 
 
Procurement 
 
Assurance Level 
 
Assurance: SATISFACTORY 
It is our opinion that controls currently in place within the system provide satisfactory assurance 
that risks material to the achievement of the systems objectives outlined in the Scope and 
Objectives section of this report are adequately managed. 
 
 
Key Findings 
 

Key Issues Strengths and Improvements 

 A regular review of all supplier spend 
should be undertaken to ensure that 
Procurement Procedure Rules have been 
adhered to and where appropriate a current 
contract / quotation is in place. 

 The procurement work plan should be 
regularly reviewed to ensure that sufficient 
action has been taken to ensure 
procurement timescales are met. 

 Comprehensive information is held on the 
intranet regarding procurement rules and 
procedures. 

 The Procurement service provides advice 
and assistance to the relevant service areas 
throughout any procurement activities. 

 Required procurement activities have been 
identified and documented on the 
procurement work plan. 

 
 
Summary of Recommendations 
 
An analysis of the recommendations categorised by risk and classification (regulatory or added 
value) is shown below:  
 

Description High Medium Low 

R A R A R A 

Supplier Spend   2  1  

Procurement Web Form     1  

Contract Register     1 1 

Procurement Work Plan   1    

Total   3  3 1 

 

Page 79



APPENDIX 1 

Housing Rents 
 
Assurance Level 
 
Assurance: SATISFACTORY 
It is our opinion that controls currently in place within the system provide satisfactory assurance 
that risks material to the achievement of the systems objectives outlined in the Scope and 
Objectives section of this report are adequately managed. 
 
 
Key Findings 
 

Key Issues Strengths and Improvements 

 A review of users allocated with system 
administrators access to the OHMS system 
should be undertaken to ensure that such 
access is limited to essential staff who have 
received sufficient training, and been 
allocated with responsibility for ensuring 
ongoing security of the system is 
maintained. 

 A review of the groups to which each user 
is allocated should be undertaken on a 
quarterly basis with Service Managers to 
ensure that their access rights are 
appropriately limited to those required for 
their current job duties. 

 The rent debit was correctly calculated and 
applied to the OHMS system. 

 Rent increase letters were sent out within 
the required deadline, ensuring that tenants 
were given 28 days notice prior to the 
increase on 4

th
 April 2016. 

 Cash received as per the income 
management system is regularly reconciled 
to the OHMS rent system. 

 Letters were issued to tenants within the 
required timeframe for the April 2017 rent 
decrease. 

 
 
Summary of Recommendations 
 
An analysis of the recommendations categorised by risk and classification (regulatory or added 
value) is shown below:  
 

Description High Medium Low 

R A R A R A 

Rent Debit Reconciliation      1 

Rent Increase/Decrease Letters      1 

System Access   2    

Total   2   2 

Page 80



APPENDIX 1 

Cemeteries  
 
Assurance Level 
 
Assurance: SATISFACTORY 
It is our opinion that controls currently in place within the system provide satisfactory assurance 
that risks material to the achievement of the systems objectives outlined in the Scope and 
Objectives section of this report are adequately managed. 
 
 
Key Findings 
 

Key Issues Strengths and Improvements 

 Plans to ensure sufficient cemetery 
capacity should be promptly progressed. 

 Memorial Safety Checks should be 
undertaken in accordance with best 
practice guidelines. 

 Maintenance plans should be documented 
and monitored. 

 Complaints were dealt with in accordance 
with corporate procedures. 

 Cemetery records/registers are securely 
held. 

 
 
Summary of Recommendations 
 
An analysis of the recommendations categorised by risk and classification (regulatory or added 
value) is shown below:  
 

Description High Medium Low 

R A R A R A 

Risk Register       1 

Fees and Charges      2  

Memorial Safety Checks   1  1  

Cemetery Records     1  

Grave Deeds     1 1 

Cemetery Regulations     1  

Cemetery Capacity   1    

Invoicing     1  

Health and Safety   1    

Total   3  7 2 

Page 81



APPENDIX 1 

Payroll Expenses 
 
Assurance Level 
 
Assurance: SATISFACTORY 
It is our opinion that controls currently in place within the system provide satisfactory assurance 
that risks material to the achievement of the systems objectives outlined in the Scope and 
Objectives section of this report are adequately managed. 
 
 
Key Findings 
 

Key Issues Strengths and Improvements 

 A review of the electronic expense system 
‘administrators’ should be undertaken and 
those members of staff who should not 
have administrator access should be 
removed. 

 A review of all authorised signatories on the 
electronic expense system should be 
undertaken to ensure that they are 
appropriate and permissions are 
adequately controlled. 

 The electronic expenses system adequately 
records sufficient information in respect of a 
travel claim. 

 Management information is readily available 
from the electronic expense system. 

 
 
Summary of Recommendations 
 
An analysis of the recommendations categorised by risk and classification (regulatory or added 
value) is shown below:  
 

Description High Medium Low 

R A R A R A 

System Administration   1    

Claim Submission     2  

Claim Authorisation   1    

Disturbance Allowance     1  

Manual Claims      1 

Receipt Retention     1  

Broadband Payments     1  

Reconciliation Procedures     1  

Other Claims     1  

Total   2  7 1 

 

Page 82



APPENDIX 1 

Corporate Project Management  
 
Assurance Level 
 
Assurance: SATISFACTORY 
It is our opinion that controls currently in place within the system provide satisfactory assurance 
that risks material to the achievement of the systems objectives outlined in the Scope and 
Objectives section of this report are adequately managed. 
 
 
Key Findings 
 

Key Issues Strengths and Improvements 

  The Alliance Project Methodology has been 
introduced which provides a comprehensive 
framework for the management of corporate 
projects. 

 A Transformation Board has been 
established which is responsible for the 
approval and monitoring of corporate 
projects.  

 The Transformation Board includes relevant 
senior officers. 

 
 
Summary of Recommendations 
 
An analysis of the recommendations categorised by risk and classification (regulatory or added 
value) is shown below:  
 

Description High Medium Low 

R A R A R A 

Project Roles and Responsibilities     1 1 

Project Register     2  

Project Documentation     4 1 

Project Approval     1  

Total     8 2 

 

  

Page 83



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 2 
 

HIGH PEAK BOROUGH COUNCIL INTERNAL AUDIT – 2017/18 PROGRESS INFORMATION AS AT 31st AUGUST 2017 
AUDIT TOTAL 

RECOMMENDATIONS 
HIGH RISK 

RECOMMENDATIONS 
MEDIUM RISK 

RECOMMENDATIONS 
LOW RISK 

RECOMMENDATIONS 
ASSURANCE OPINION / 

COMMENTS 

 Regulatory Added 
value 

Agreed / (Not 
Agreed) 

Due to 
date 

Actioned 
to date 

Agreed / (Not 
Agreed) 

Due to 
date 

Actioned 
to date 

Agreed / (Not 
Agreed) 

Due to 
date 

Actioned 
to date 

 

Procurement 6 1 0  0 0 3  0 0 4  0 0 Satisfactory 

Housing Rents 2 2 0  0 0 2  0 0 2  0 0 Satisfactory 

Cemeteries 10 2 0  0 0 3  0 0 9  0 0 Satisfactory 

Payroll Expenses 9 1 0  0 0 2  0 0 8  0 0 Satisfactory 

Corporate Project Management 8 2 0  0 0 0  0 0 10  1 1 Satisfactory 

Disabled Facilities Grants Assurance               Quality Control Stage 

Land Charges               Work In Progress 

Conservation               Work In Progress 

Horticulture               Work In Progress 

Capital Contract Management               Work In Progress 

Housing Planned Maintenance               Work In Progress 

Safeguarding Children & V A               Work In Progress 

                

TOTAL RECOMMENDATIONS 43 0    10    33     

ACTION TAKEN TO DATE  0 0  0 0  1 1  

 
Key: 

Risk   Class  
High Significant control weakness / inefficiency exists with a high likelihood of occurring, potentially 

causing a breach of legislation / legal requirements and/or a substantial loss or damage to Council 
assets, information and reputation.  Considered essential to implement recommendation promptly. 

 Regulatory To ensure the integrity of internal controls and/or compliance with Regulations / 
Policies and Procedures.  

     
Medium Control weakness / inefficiency exists with a moderate likelihood of occurring, potentially causing a 

breach of organisational policies and procedures, loss or damage to Council assets, information 
and reputation.  Considered essential to implement recommendation to ensure adequate system 
controls / necessary improvement in service provision. 

 Added 
Value 

Intended as an enhancement to the existing system which may provide a benefit 
to either the user or the customer. 

     
Low Minor control weakness / inefficiency exists with a minimal impact on the Council assets, 

information and reputation.  Considered necessary to implement recommendation to provide 
management with additional assurance regarding the adequacy of system controls / improvement 
in service provision. 

   

 

P
age 85



T
his page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 3 
HIGH PEAK BOROUGH COUNCIL INTERNAL AUDIT – 2016/17 AUDIT RECOMMENDATIONS IMPLEMENTATION 

AUDIT TOTAL 
RECOMMENDATIONS 

HIGH RISK 
RECOMMENDATIONS 

MEDIUM RISK 
RECOMMENDATIONS 

LOW RISK 
RECOMMENDATIONS 

ASSURANCE OPINION / 
COMMENTS 

 Regulatory Added 
value 

Agreed / (Not 
Agreed) 

Due to 
date 

Actioned 
to date 

Agreed / (Not 
Agreed) 

Due to 
date 

Actioned 
to date 

Agreed / (Not 
Agreed) 

Due to 
date 

Actioned 
to date 

 

Housing Rents 5 2 0  0 0 2  2 2 5  5 5 Satisfactory 

Democratic Services 11 3 0  0 0 0  0 0 14  14 12 Satisfactory 

CCTV 9 1 0  0 0 2  1 1 8  6 6 Satisfactory 

Right to Buy 4 1 0  0 0 0  0 0 5  5 5 Satisfactory 

Taxi Licensing 15 8 1  1 1 6  6 6 16  16 16 Limited 

Bank Contract 5 1 0  0 0 3  2 2 3  1 1 Satisfactory 

Tourism 4 0 0  0 0 0  0 0 4  1 1 Satisfactory 

Capital Accounting 0 0 0  0 0 0  0 0 0  0 0 Substantial 

Street Cleansing 7 2 0  0 0 2  0 0 7  7 7 Satisfactory 

Social Media 5 2 0  0 0 0  0 0 7  4 4 Satisfactory 

Housing Tenancy Allocation 6 0 0  0 0 1  1 1 5  4 4 Satisfactory 

Bacs Transmissions 8 1 0  0 0 2  2 2 7  7 7 Satisfactory 

Food Safety 6 0 0  0 0 0  0 0 6  3 3 Satisfactory 

Grounds Maintenance 10 1 0  0 0 3  2 2 8  7 7 Satisfactory 

Performance Management 2 0 0  0 0 0  0 0 2  2 2 Substantial 

Parking 18 2 0  0 0 2  1 1 18  4 4 Satisfactory 

Assets & Facilities 6 1 0  0 0 4  2 2 3  1 1 Limited 

Human Resources 9 1 0  0 0 1  1 1 9  7 7 Satisfactory 

Sports Development 0 0 0  0 0 0  0 0 0  0 0 Substantial 

Risk Management 3 0 0  0 0 0  0 0 3  3 3 Satisfactory 

Treasury Management 1 0 0  0 0 0  0 0 1  0 0 Substantial 

Housing Repairs & Maintenance 9 4 0  0 0 2  0 0 11  5 5 Satisfactory 

Commercial Properties 6 1 0  0 0 3  1 1 4  1 1 Satisfactory 

Corporate Governance 7 0 0  0 0 0  0 0 7  0 0 Satisfactory 

Sundry Debtors 3 3 0  0 0 1  0 0 5  0 0 Satisfactory 

General Ledger 1 1 0  0 0 0  0 0 2  0 0 Substantial 

Recovery 5 1 0  0 0 1  0 0 5  1 0 Satisfactory 

Budgetary Control 0 0 0  0 0 0  0 0 0  0 0 Substantial 

Payroll 8 3 0  0 0 2  1 1 9  4 1 Satisfactory 

Creditor Payments 6 0 0  0 0 1  0 0 5  0 0 Satisfactory 

NNDR 4 0 0  0 0 1  0 0 3  0 0 Satisfactory 

Housing Benefits 4 2 0  0 0 1  0 0 5  3 3 Satisfactory 

Council Tax 8 1 0  0 0 3  0 0 6  1 1 Satisfactory 

Postal Arrangements 7 3 0  0 0 2  1 1 8  0 0 Satisfactory 

Housing Strategy 0 1 0  0 0 0  0 0 1  1 1 Substantial 

TOTAL RECOMMENDATIONS 248 1    45    202     

ACTION TAKEN TO DATE  1 1  23 23  113 107  

Risk   Class  
High Significant control weakness / inefficiency exists with a high likelihood of occurring, potentially 

causing a breach of legislation / legal requirements and/or a substantial loss or damage to Council 
assets, information and reputation.  Considered essential to implement recommendation promptly. 

 Regulatory To ensure the integrity of internal controls and/or compliance with Regulations / 
Policies and Procedures.  

     
Medium Control weakness / inefficiency exists with a moderate likelihood of occurring, potentially causing a 

breach of organisational policies and procedures, loss or damage to Council assets, information 
and reputation.  Considered essential to implement recommendation to ensure adequate system 
controls / necessary improvement in service provision. 

 Added 
Value 

Intended as an enhancement to the existing system which may provide a benefit 
to either the user or the customer. 

     
Low Minor control weakness / inefficiency exists with a minimal impact on the Council assets, 

information and reputation.  Considered necessary to implement recommendation to provide 
management with additional assurance regarding the adequacy of system controls / improvement 
in service provision. 

   

 

P
age 87



T
his page is intentionally left blank



        
 

HIGH PEAK BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 
 

Report to Audit & Regulatory Committee 
 

27 September 2017 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Appendices Attached - None 
 
 
1.        Reason for the Report: 
 
1.1 To consider the selection of the Mayor for the municipal year 2018/19.  

  
 
2. Recommendation 

2.1 That at its meeting on 30 November 2017 Council confirm that the 
Conservative Group be invited to make a nomination for the appointment of 
Mayor of the Borough and Chairman of the Council for the municipal year 
2018/19. 
 
 

3. Executive Summary 
 
3.1 The Mayor is selected according to a points system as referred to in Article 5 

of the Constitution and detailed in the Protocol for the Nomination of Mayor. 
 

3.2 The basic principle is the political group with most points at 1 October each 
year, has the opportunity to nominate the Mayor for the next municipal year. 
 

3.3 The system started with the actual number of members in each political group.  
Since 1980, annual adjustments have been made according to changes in 
each group’s strength. 

 
3.4 Whenever a group nominate a Mayor, ten points are deducted from their 

TITLE: Appointment of Mayor 2018/19 
 
EXECUTIVE COUNCILLOR: Councillor Ashton, Leader of the Council 
   
CONTACT OFFICER: Linden Vernon, Senior Officer - Governance 

and Member Support 
   
WARDS INVOLVED:  Non-Specific 

Page 89

Agenda Item 9



points total and this shows up the following October.  
 
4.       Options and Analysis 
 
4.1 The points allocated to the political groups have been adjusted following the 

elections held in May this year.  
 

4.2 The points system for the selection of the Mayor currently stands as follows: 
 

Group Points as 
at 

1.10.16 

Mayor for 
2017/18 

Points as 
at 

1.10.17 
Conservative 
 15  15 

Labour 
 24 X 24 – 10 = 

14 
Liberal Democrat & 
Independent Alliance 11  11 

 
4.3 In respect of the Deputy Mayor, the points system does not apply. 
 
4.4 Some years, the Deputy Mayor has been chosen with a view to progressing to 

Mayor the following year, but this is not always the case. 
 

5. Implications 
 

5.1
  

Community Safety - (Crime and Disorder Act 1998) 
 
None 
 

5.2 Workforce 
 
None 
 

5.3 Equality and Diversity/Equality Impact Assessment 
 
This report has been prepared in accordance with the Council's 
Diversity and Equality Policies. 
 

5.4 Financial Considerations 
 
There is an annual budget provision for Mayoral functions.  
 

5.5 Legal 
 
None other than those referred to in the report. 
 

5.6 Sustainability 
 
None 
 

Page 90



5.7 
 
 
 

Internal and External Consultation 
 
None 

5.8 
 
 
 

Risk Assessment 
 
None 
 

 

 

Mark Trillo 
Executive Director (People) & Monitoring Officer 

 
 
Web Links and 
Background Papers 

Location Contact details 

N/A N/A Linden Vernon 
Senior Officer 
Governance and Member 
Support 
Tel: 01538 395613 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 91



This page is intentionally left blank



1 
 

 

 
CONSTITUTION SUB-COMMITTEE 

 
Meeting: Tuesday, 19 September 2017 at 5.30 pm in The Board Room, Pavilion 

Gardens, Buxton 
 

Present: Councillor J Pritchard (Chair)  
 

 Councillors A Barrow, J Douglas and F Sloman 
 

 Councillor E Thrane was also in attendance 
 

 Apologies for absence were received from Councillors S Helliwell and 
D Robins 
 

18/1 APPOINTMENT OF CHAIR 
(Agenda Item 2) 
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That Councillor Pritchard be appointed Chairman of the Sub-Committee. 
 

18/2 TO RECEIVE DISCLOSURES OF INTEREST ON ANY MATTERS BEFORE 
THE COMMITTEE 
(Agenda Item 3) 
 
There were no declarations made. 
 

18/3 REVISED TERMS OF REFERENCE - AUDIT AND REGULATORY 
COMMITTEE 
(Agenda Item 4) 
 
The Sub-Committee considered the revised terms of reference (Appendix A) 
of the Audit and Regulatory Committee as requested at its meeting on 26 
July 2017. 
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the Audit and Regulatory Committee be recommended to update 
section 3 of the terms of reference to clarify that the sub-committees/special 
panel referred to consist of elected members only. 
 

18/4 DRAFT UPDATED PROCUREMENT PROCEDURE RULES 
(Agenda Item 5) 
 
The Procurement Procedure Rules (Appendix B) were last updated in 2012.  
Since this time there had been a number of changes, including staff 
resources / structures following the service review process and an increased 
use of technology to support the procurement process.  Therefore, the 
Procurement Procedure Rules had been amended to incorporate these 
changes.  In addition, the opportunity had been taken to review the Rules as 
a whole.   

 High Peak Borough Council 

 

Page 93

Agenda Item 10



Constitution Sub-Committee 
Tuesday, 19 September 2017 

 

 
 

 
The Sub-Committee considered the report and recommended that, in 
addition to a number of typographical corrections, reference should be made 
to equalities with regards to observing the principles of public procurement 
(para 12.1) and that greater emphasis should be given to ensuring that 
contracts are not broken down (para 12.3). 
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the revised Procurement Procedure Rules be recommended to the 
Audit and Regulatory Committee, subject to the amendments referred to 
above. 
 

18/5 DELEGATIONS TO THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR (TRANSFORMATION) 
(Agenda Item 6) 
 
The Sub-Committee considered an addition to the delegations to the 
Executive Director (Transformation) (Chief Financial Officer) with regards to 
cheque signing rules (Appendix C) contained within Part 3 of the Council’s 
Constitution (Responsibility of Functions). The approval of this 
recommendation and subsequent update to the Constitution would allow the 
bank mandate to be updated in terms of the appropriate authorised 
signatories in accordance with the Council’s Financial Regulations and 
revised Constitution.  
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the Audit and Regulatory Committee be recommended that a 
delegation relating to cheque signing rules be added to the delegations to 
the Executive Director (Transformation) (Chief Financial Officer). 
 
 
The meeting concluded at 5.55 pm 
 
 
 
 
 
CHAIRMAN 
 

Page 94



           Appendix 1 

Revised Terms of Reference – Audit & Regulatory Committee 
 

Composition 
1 The Audit & Regulatory Committee shall consist of the following membership: 

• 9 councillors appointed by the Council for such term of office as 

determined by the Council. 

• 3 independent non-voting members appointed to attend and participate at 

committee meetings. 

2 The Committee shall report direct to Council on the matters contained in its 

Terms of Reference (below) in accordance with the Council’s Constitution and 

Procedure Rules contained therein. 

3 The Committee may: 

• appoint a sub-committee of three elected members to deal with urgent 

and minor matters within the Committee’s terms of reference. 

• appoint a special panel of elected members with full delegated powers 

to take a decision on a planning application made by the Council where 

the Development Control Committee is minded to refuse it. 

• appoint a sub-committee of six elected members to make 

recommendations relating to the operation of the Council’s 

Constitution. 

 

Statement of Purpose 
1 The Audit & Regulatory Committee is a key component of High Peak Borough 

Council’s corporate governance. It provides an independent and high-level 

focus on the audit, assurance and reporting arrangements that underpin good 

governance and financial standards.  

2 The purpose of the Audit & Regulatory Committee is to provide independent 

assurance to the members of the adequacy of the risk management 

framework and the internal control environment. It provides independent 

review of High Peak Borough Council’s governance, risk management and 

control frameworks and oversees the financial reporting and annual 

Page 95



governance processes. It oversees internal audit and external audit, helping 

to ensure efficient and effective assurance arrangements are in place. 

3 The Committee has responsibility for other matters including elections, the 

Name and status of areas and individuals, parish/town councils, by-laws and 

orders and other regulatory issues. 

 
Governance, risk and control 
1 To review the council’s corporate governance arrangements against the good 

governance framework and consider annual governance reports and 

assurances.  

2 To review and approve the Annual Governance Statement and consider 

whether it properly reflects the risk environment and supporting assurances, 

taking into account internal audit’s opinion on the overall adequacy and 

effectiveness of the council’s framework of governance, risk management and 

control.  

3 To consider the council’s arrangements to secure value for money and review 

assurances and assessments on the effectiveness of these arrangements.  

4 To consider the council’s framework of assurance and ensure that it 

adequately addresses the risks and priorities of the council.  

5 To approve the risk management strategy and monitor the effective 

development and operation of risk management in the council. 

6 To monitor progress in addressing risk-related issues reported to the 

committee.  

7 To consider reports on the effectiveness of internal controls and monitor the 

implementation of agreed actions.  

8 To review the assessment of fraud risks and potential harm to the council 

from fraud and corruption.  

9 To approve and monitor the counter-fraud and corruption strategy and 

whistleblowing policy, actions and resources. 

10 To approve the Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000 (RIPA) policy 

and procedures and monitor the Council’s use of RIPA powers.  

11 To recommend to Council the approval of the Annual Treasury Management 

Strategy and Annual Treasury Management Report and scrutinise all treasury 

management reports. 

Page 96



 
Internal audit 
1 To approve the internal audit charter. 

2 To review proposals made in relation to the appointment of external providers 

of internal audit services and to make recommendations.  

3 To approve the risk-based internal audit plan, including internal audit’s 

resources requirements, the approach to using other sources of assurance 

and any work required to place reliance upon those other sources.  

4 To approve significant interim changes to the risk-based internal audit plan 

and resource requirements.  

5 To make appropriate enquires of both management and the head of internal 

audit to determine if there any inappropriate scope or resources limitations.  

6 To consider reports from the head of internal audit on the internal audit’s 

performance during the year, including the performance of external providers 

of internal audit services. These will include: 

• Updates on the work of internal audit including key findings, issues of 

concern and action in hand as a result of internal audit.  

• Regular reports on the results of the Quality Assurance and Improvement 

Programme.  

• Reports on instances where the internal audit function does not conform 

to the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards and Local Government 

Application Note, considering whether the non-conformance is significant 

enough that it must be included in the Annual Governance Statement.  

7 To consider the head of internal audit’s annual report: 

• The statement of the level of conformance with the Public Sector Internal 

Audit Standards and Local Government Application Note and the results 

of the Quality Assurance and Improvement Programme that supports the 

statement – these will indicate the reliability of the conclusions of internal 

audit.  

• The opinion on the overall adequacy and effectiveness of the council’s 

framework of governance, risk management and control together with the 

summary of the work supporting the opinion – these will assist the 

committee in reviewing the Annual Governance Statement.  

Page 97



8 To consider summaries of specific internal audit reports as requested.  

9 To receive reports outlining the action taken where the head of internal audit 

has concluded that management has accepted a level of risk that may be 

unacceptable to the authority or there are concerns about progress with the 

implementation of agreed actions. 

10 To contribute to the Quality Assurance and Improvement Programme and in 

particular, to the external quality assessment of internal audit that takes place 

at least once every five years.   

11 To consider a report on the effectiveness of internal audit to support the 

Annual Governance Statement, where required to do so by the Accounts and 

Audit Regulations. 

12 To support the development of effective communication with the head of 

internal audit.  

 
External audit 
1 To consider the external auditor’s annual letter, relevant reports, and the 

report to those charged with governance. 

2 To consider specific reports as agreed with the external auditor. 

3 To comment on the scope and depth of external audit work and to ensure it 

gives value for money.  

4 To commission work from internal and external audit.  

5 To advise and recommend on the effectiveness of relationships between 

external and internal audit and other inspection agencies or relevant bodies.  

 
Financial reporting  
1 To review and approve the annual statement of accounts. Specifically, to 

consider whether appropriate accounting policies have been followed and 

whether there are concerns arising from the financial statements or from the 

audit that need to be brought to the attention of the council.  

2 To consider the external auditor’s report to those charged with governance on 

issues arising from the audit of the accounts.  

3 In relation to the approval of the annual statement of accounts, only the 

elected members of the Council shall be entitled to vote upon any such 

Page 98



resolution, in accordance with the relevant statutory provisions concerning the 

regulation and control of an authority’s finances by elected members alone. 

 
Accountability arrangements 
1 To report to those charged with governance on the committee’s findings, 

conclusions and recommendations concerning the adequacy and 

effectiveness of their governance, risk management and internal control 

frameworks; financial reporting arrangements, and internal and external audit 

functions.  

2 To report to full council on a regular basis on the committee’s performance in 

relation to the terms of reference and the effectiveness of the committee in 

meeting its purpose.  

 

Elections and Parish/Town Councils 
1 Duty to appoint an electoral registration officer 

2 Power to assign officers in relation to requisitions of the registration officer 

3 Functions in relation to parishes and parish councils 

4 Power to dissolve parish councils 

5 Power to make orders for grouping parishes, dissolving groups and 

separating parishes from groups 

6 Duty to appoint returning officer for local government elections, referenda and 

Police Commissioner Elections 

7 Duty to provide assistance at European Parliamentary elections 

8 Duty to divide constituency into polling districts 

9 Power to divide electoral divisions and wards into polling districts at local 

government elections 

10 Power to designate polling places 

11 Powers in respect of holding of elections 

12 Power to pay expenses properly incurred by electoral registration officers 

13 Power to fill vacancies in the event of insufficient nominations 

14 Duty to declare vacancy in office in certain cases 

15 Duty to give public notice of a casual vacancy 

16 Power to make temporary appointments to parish councils under Section 91 

of the Local Government Act 1972 

Page 99



17 Power to determine fees and conditions for supply of copies of, or extracts 

from, elections documents 

18 Power to submit proposals to the Secretary of State for an order under section 

10 (pilot schemes for local elections in England and Wales) of the 

Representation of the People Act 2000 
 

Name and status of areas and individuals 
1 Power to change the name of the Borough (recommendation to Full Council) 

2 Power to change the name of a parish (recommendation to Full Council) 

3 Power to confer title of honorary freeman (recommendation to Full Council) 

 

Byelaws and Orders 
1 Power to promote or oppose local or personal Bills and to consider the making 

of an order identifying a place as a designated public place for the purposes of 

police powers in relation to alcohol consumption for recommendation to full 

council for approval 

 

Regulatory Matters 
1 Power to make payments or provide other benefits in cases of 

maladministration etc. 

2 Power to approve or make recommendations to Full Council with regards to 

the operation of the Council’s Constitution in accordance with Article 14 of the 

Constitution. 

3 Any other matter involving a regulatory or quasi judicial, function of the 

Council which by law cannot be the responsibility of the Executive and for 

which no other provision is made in the Constitution 

4 Functions under any of the “relevant statutory provisions” within the meaning 

of Part 1 (health, safety and welfare in connection with work, and control of 

dangerous substances) of the Health and Safety at Work etc. Act 1974, to the 

extent that those functions are discharged otherwise than in the authority’s 

capacity as an employer 

5 All regulatory functions under the Derbyshire Act 1981 

6 The making and revocation of appointments to outside bodies where the 

appointments relate to Council functions 

Page 100



7 Making recommendations to the Council on the nomination of the Mayor  

8 Matters relating to civic and ceremonial protocol and the mayoralty 

 

Page 101



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

HIGH PEAK BOROUGH COUNCIL  
&  

STAFFORDSHIRE MOORLANDS DISTRICT COUNCIL  
 

 

 

DRAFT 
JOINT PROCUREMENT 
PROCEDURE RULES 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

REVISED: September 2017 

 

APPENDIX B 

Page 103



CONTENTS PAGE 

Section  Subject  
   
1 Background  
2 Introduction  
3 Key Responsibilities  
4 Procurement Reviews  
5 Specification of Requirement  
6 Procurement Thresholds & Process   
7 Authorisation to Procure ad award   
8 Contract Terms, Extensions & Variations  
9 Performance Bonds & Parent Company Guarantees  
10 Electronic Webform Portal  
11 Permitted Exemptions to the Rules  
12 Procurement Procedures  
13 Late Submissions  
14 Acceptance of Quotations & Tenders  
15 Evaluation Criteria & Selection  
16 Sub-Contractors  
17 Insurances  
18 Contract Award & Completion  
19 Construction Procurement (Works Contracts)  
20 Framework Agreements  
21 E-Procurement   
22 Purchase to Pay (P2P) Process  
23 Contract Management  
24 Collaborative Working  
25 Transparency  
26 Fraud & Corruption - Officer Interests   
27 Fraud & Corruption - Supplier  
28 Legislation – The Legal Framework  
29 Freedom of Information  
30 Data Protection  
 
ANNEX A 

 
Specification of Requirement Guidance  

 

ANNEX B Summary of Sourcing Thresholds  
ANNEX C Summary of Authority to Procure & Awarding Thresholds  
ANNEX D Permitted Exemptions to the Rules  
ANNEX E Purchase to Pay Cycle  

 

 

 

 

Page 104



1 Background 
 
1.1 Procurement can be defined as…‘the process of acquiring supplies, works or services 

from third parties. The process spans the whole cycle from the identification of need, 
through to the end of a service contract or the end of the useful life of an asset. It 
involves options appraisal and the critical “make or buy” decision, which may result in 
the provision of services in-house in appropriate circumstances.” 

 
1.2  The Procurement Procedure Rules cover the processes that should be followed for 

 all purchasing, licensing, leasing, contracting, commercial partnering or 
 commissioning of works, supplies or services from third parties. 

1.3  Commissioning Officers are required to follow and adhere to the requirements as set 
 out in these procedure rules and in the regulatory framework to which it fits. 

2 Introduction  
 
2.1 High Peak Borough Council and Staffordshire Moorlands District Council adopted a 

joint set of rules and procedures for procurement in 2012, since then the Councils 
have developed and strengthened a comprehensive approach to Procurement. 

2.2 The Councils continue their commitment to a number of key objectives which fit 
against both Councils Corporate Plan priorities, key objectives include; 

• Constantly reviewing and improving procurement practices to achieve better 
value for money and maximising on savings opportunities. 

• Making best possible use of e-procurement, purchasing power and economies 
of scale 

• Ensuring that sourcing activity complies with all legal requirements, including 
UK and EU legislation in force in England 

• Promoting accessibility to Council business for local small and medium-sized 
enterprises 

• Ensuring non-discrimantory, fair and compliant process for the selection of 
suppliers 

 
2.3 The Procurement Procedure Rules - which support the Joint Procurement Strategy - 

underpin the objectives of effective Procurement across both High Peak Borough 
Council and Staffordshire Moorlands  District Council. 

 
2.4  The Procurement Procedure Rules apply to: 
 

•  All officers, Members, agents and contractors of the Alliance  
•  High Peak Borough Council and Staffordshire Moorlands District Council 

individually when undertaking procurement exercises independently outside the 
Alliance. 

 
2.5 Procurement activity will be carried out in conjunction with the Procurement Unit 

unless prior approval is granted by the Executive Director (Transformation) & Chief 
Finance Officer.  Authorised Officers responsible for purchasing or disposal must 
comply with the Procurement Procedure Rules, Financial Regulations, Code of 
Conduct and with all UK and European Union binding legal requirements 
 

Page 105



2.6 Failure to comply with the requirements as set out will be treated seriously and may 
result in disciplinary action being taken. 

 
3 Key Responsibilities 
 
3.1 Member responsibility for procurement and its strategic implementation resides 
 with the Executive at High Peak Borough Council and the Cabinet at Staffordshire 
 Moorlands District Council. 

3.2 Officer responsibility for overall compliance with the Rules rests with Executive 
Directors and the Chief Executive. Specifically they are required to: 

 
• Take responsibility for all contracts awarded within their directorate 
• Ensure compliance in respect of the Procurement Procedure Rules and Public 

Sector Contract Regulations 
• Award contracts up to their appropriate financial ‘approval value’ level 
• Ensure value for money is achieved; and 
• Take immediate action if the Procurement Procedure Rules are breached 

 
3.3 The Procurement Unit is required to: 
 

• Provide support and advice to Officers and Elected Members on Procurement 
Procedures 

• Maintain an awareness of procurement activity within both Authorities and 
establish and maintain a Procurement Forward Plan.  The Procurement Forward 
Plan is to be presented as part of the Medium Term Financial Plan & Budget 
Setting report in February annually.   

• Act as a best practice conduit for Procurement procedures 
• Act impartially and fully support procurement projects including ensuring 

appropriate selection of suppliers  
• Provide quarterly Procurement performance reports to Committee 
• Maintain the Procurement Forward Plan, Contracts Register and Supplier records 
• Prepare draft Contract agreements for legal instruction  
• Request Variations and Extensions be included to original contract 

documentation, where agreements permit 
• Provide Contract Management Support and guidance 

 
3.4 The Legal Service is required to: 
 

• Give legal advice to instructing officers on contractual issues in relation to 
existing and future contracts including advice on the interpretation of EU law and 
domestic legislation when applied to these rules and procurement processes 

• Review any proposed contractor terms and conditions against the service 
requirements as set out by the instructing officers 

 
3.5 The HR Service is required to: 
 

• Provide support and advise on the Transfer of Undertakings (Protection of 
Employment) Regulations (TUPE) related matters 

 
3.6 The Finance Service is required to: 
 

• Provide financial spend analysis and associated budget information 
• Provide credit checks and  financial appraisals to support supplier selection 

Page 106



• Enable savings achieved through Procurement activity to be taken from Service 
budgets towards the Efficiency Programme 

• Provide advice on suitable levels of Insurance covers for Professional Indemnity 
and Public Liability 

• Complete funding options appraisals where fixed assets are being procured to 
ensure value for money is achieved – looking at outright purchase (utilising 
available funding), external borrowing, leasing and any other alternative funding 
options.    

• Where a leasing arrangement is procured, ensure information is collated from 
the supplier to ensure lease arrangements are accounted for on the correct basis 

 
3.7     The Corporate Health and Safety Adviser is required to: 

• Provide a professional assessment of tenderer’s Health and Safety 
arrangements at selection stage 

• Provide updates on Health and Safety legislations to incorporate into 
Procurement documentation for qualification of suppliers 

• Ensures that the  Health and Safety for Contractors handbook is reviewed as 
legislation changes 

 
4 Procurement Reviews 
 
4.1 The Procurement Business Partners will meet with Service leads on a regular basis to 

agree their requirements for procurement support on a rolling programme.  The 
outputs of these reviews are to: 

 
• Identify and challenge the need for purchase against the operational / business 

requirement 
• Populate the Joint Procurement Forward Plan and ensure Procurement support 

resource is available 
• Agree suitable sourcing approaches to achieve optimum outputs and benefits to 

the Council 
• Ensure compliance measures are in place 
• Identify and monitor any contract management issues 

 
4.2 The Procurement Unit has the responsibility for sourcing the requirement and where 
 appropriate applies the principles of category management to ensure the most 
 advantageous route is taken. 
 
4.3 A Procurement Board is also established, with key senior officers in attendance 

focusing on high level procurement activity, overall perforamance and addressing any 
specific procurement/contractual issue.  

 
5 Specification of Requirement 
 
5.1 A “Specification of Requirement” (SOR) must be produced prior to tender or requests 

for quotations for all supplies, services or works required.   
 

5.2  No specific technical specifications, product range or brand names should be 
 used unless there is no other suitable market alternative available. 
 
 
 

Page 107



5.3 The specification must be accurate as to the requirements of the contract. A poor 
description may mean that the product or service is not delivered to the required 
standard and late changes to a specification may result in additional or abortive costs. 
The specification should be:   

 
•       Outcome focussed – fit for purpose  
•        Standardised and the use of specific detail that would limit tender bids should be 

avoided 
•       Form part of the terms of reference of the contract and; 
•    include the agreed evaluation criteria 

5.4 When the SOR is being developed by the Service, it is important that the users of the 
product or service are consulted to ensure that what is actually needed is clearly 
described (and not the perception of what is needed). The Councils are committed to 
working with public, private and voluntary sector organisations to develop co-operative 
procurement arrangements and develop supplier effectiveness. Consideration should 
be made to engaging and involving communities in the procurement process where 
relevant, it may be appropriate to undertake a consultation exercise prior to the 
procurement.  Guidelines for producing a SOR are included in ANNEX A. 
 

6 Procurement Thresholds and Process 
 
6.1 The table in ANNEX B summarises the basic procurement process applied to each 

category value of spend for the sourcing of supplies, services and works.  The 
minimum requirements are to ensure that the Council achieves best value and 
compliance against its sourcing activity. 

 
7 Authorisation to procure and award 
 
7.1 Procurement activity must not commence without verification of budget available.  The 
 value of the contract should be based on the related whole life costs (WLC) of the 
 supplies, services of works being commissioned during the ‘lifetime’ of the contract. 
 
7.2 The Joint Procurement Forward Plan will be reported within the Medium Term 

Financial Plan and Budget Setting Report in February each year.  This will identify all 
registered procurement activity to be completed in the following financial year.  This 
will be agreed on an annual basis and approval sought to commence procurement of 
all activity listed.  Performance and activity (including confirmation of award) against 
the forward plan will then be monitored and reported within the Quarterly Procurement 
Report to Committee. 

 
7.3  The approval limits to be applied to authorise the award of contracts and apply 

exemptions are detailed in ANNEX C.   
 
7.4 Any procurement activity undertaken during the year which was not included on the 

forward plan will also follow the authorisation rules (to procure/award) detailed in 
ANNEX C and detail will be included within the Quarterly Procurement Report.  

 
7.5 Irrespective of the total contract value, Committee reports may be presented to 

Executive/Cabinet to obtain authority to procure and award where considered 
appropriate due to the nature of the procurement or where it relates to a key decision. 

 
 
 

Page 108



8 Contract Terms, Permitted Contract Extensions and Variations 
 
8.1 Contract terms usually should not exceed five years in total, including an initial fixed 

term and possible extensions.  In more complex contracts e.g. Management of 
services or strategic operational contracts, it may be permitted that the terms of 
agreement will extend beyond five years. 

 
8.2 The Council’s adopt a set of Standard terms and conditions and Consultants 

Agreements for use when contracting outside of industry standard (Construction) or 
framework terms and conditions.  The intended form of agreement should be made 
available at publication or invite to tender stage.  Deviation, amendments or adopting 
supplier terms and conditions must be referred to the Procurement Unit in consultation 
with Legal Services. 

 
8.3 Where appropriate ‘Break Clauses’ must be agreed and included into Contract 
 documents.   

8.4 Extensions to existing contracts should only be entered into if they are included in the 
contract conditions and must be agreed by both parties in writing. Any other ‘roll-overs’ 
will be classed as off-contract expenditure as there is no binding contract and are 
therefore discouraged unless justified. 

8.5 For EU related tenders, the extension must have been identified in the original EU 
Notice. 
 

8.6 When an operational manager proposes to extend a contract to include additional 
works, services, goods or materials, similar to those included in the original contract, 
they can do so only where all of the following criteria are met: 

(a) The original contract has been undertaken to a satisfactory standard 

(b) The proposed additional works, services, goods or materials are substantially 
similar to those included in the original scope of the contract.  Where additional 
works, services or supplies were not included in the initial procurement, the 
following must apply (in addition to the other criteria listed):- 

- A change of supplier cannot be made for economic or technical reasons such 
as requirements of interchangeability with existing equipment, services or 
installations  

- A change of supplier would cause significant inconvenience or substantial 
duplication of costs for the contracting Authority 

(c) The original contractor has submitted a further offer to the Council for the proposed 
additional works, services, goods or materials and that tender does not exceed the 
contract value of the original successful tender by more than 50%, (e.g. where 
original value of contract is £100,000 an extension can be granted up to a value of 
£50,000 giving a total final contract value of £150,000)  However, the total final 
contract value must have been procured compliantly in line with the 
Council’s Procurement Procedure rules.  

(d) The original contract has not been completed more than 18 months prior to the 
submission of the further offer 

(e) The original Contract has not previously been extended under this Rule; and 

(f) The duration of any contract, including extensions, shall not exceed five years. 

Page 109



8.7 A new agreement must not be entered into directly with a supplier without consultation 
with, the Procurement Unit and approval granted by the relevant Executive Director. 
 

8.8 Subject to the provisions of these procedures, variations to a Contract will be 
considered and permitted, subject to this variation not constituting ‘material change’ to 
the character, nature or subject matter of the Contract and do not breach the 
requirements set out under Public Contract Regulations. 

 
8.9 For contract variations up to £2,000, the Service Manager shall have delegated power 

to approve the variation.  For values exceeding this, authorisation must be obtained in 
line with the authorisation thresholds set out in ANNEX A.   

 
8.10 No Officer shall give any instruction to a supplier/contractor, which materially varies or 

changes the Contract without confirming first the financial and/or legal effect.  
 
9 Performance Bonds / Parent Company Guarantees 

 
9.1 A Performance Bond or adequate security may be required where:- 
 

• The total contract value is over £250,000 AND 
 
• There would be a significant financial risk to the Authority if the supplier defaulted 

OR 
• The nature of the procurement is deemed ‘high risk’ OR 
• Payments in advance of works/services are required OR 
• There is uncertainty as to the financial strength of the supplier  

 
9.2 The bond will represent 10% of the total contract value unless otherwise agreed by the 

Executive Director (Transformation) & Chief Finance Officer or Executive Director 
(People) & Monitoring Officer.  Works shall not begin until the bond has been provided 
unless there is a provision in the contract entitling the Council to retain 10% of the 
value of any interim payments until the bond has been executed. 

 
9.3 Affordability and proportionality must always be taken into consideration when deciding 

whether some from of financial security is appropriate. 
 
9.4 A Parent Company Guarantee must be considered when the successful bidder is a 

subsidiary of a parent company and:- 
 

• the estimated contract value exceeds £250,000 AND 
 
• award is based on evaluation of the parent company OR 
• there is a degree of uncertainty as to the financial strength of the subsidiary 

 
9.6 Consideration of requesting a performance bond or parent company guarantee for 

contracts under the threshold above (<£250,000) should still be undertaken if there is a 
significant financial risk to the Authority if the supplier defaulted.  

 
9.7 Justification as to whether a bond/parent company guarantee is required is to be 

documented and held with the procurement documents.  Where a supplier matches the 
criteria for a performance bond/parent company guarantee, the requirement can only 
be waived following discussion with Executive Director (Transformation) & Chief 
Finance Officer or Executive Director (People) & Monitoring Officer (or delegated 
officer) and signed off accordingly. 

Page 110



 
9.8 Tender documents must make reference to the potential for a performance 

bond/parent company guarantee to be required  
 
10 Procurement Electronic Webform Portal 
 
10.1 Procurement activity over £2,000 must be supported by an electronic procurement 
 webform item, accessed from the Council’s Intranet. 
 
10.2 The Procurement webform enables the following: 
 

• Registration of work item activity, including stepped process workflow 
• Unique numeric reference to be applied as contract reference 
• Overview of requirement(s) and estimated value 
• Authorisation to proceed and award 

 
11 Permitted Exemptions to the Rules 
 
11.1 There are permitted exemptions to the Procurement Procedure Rules provided the 

value is below the EU tender level and is within the discretionary powers of the Chief 
Executive and Executive Directors – see ANNEX D 

 
11.2 A direct award to a single supplier outside of competitive procedure or compliant 

contract arrangement,arrangement will be required to have a ‘single source’ 
exemption form completed and authorised in  accordance with the thresholds 
set out in ANNEX A.  

 
11.3 The Procurement Unit must be made aware of any intended exemption to the 

Procedures Rules before commissioning, a procurement webform must be submitted 
and the ‘Exemption to Rules’ form must be completed and authorised.  This will be 
issued by the Procurement Unit. 

 
11.4 Exemptions will only by considered if the following apply:- 

• No contravention of any statutory or EU requirement(s) (as set out in the Public 
Contract Regulations) will arise and:- 

• The Chief Executive or responsible Executive Director is satisfied that the 
requirement of the relevant exemption as detailed in Annex D are met in relation 
to the Contract in question 

 
12  Procurement Procedures 
 
12.1  The general principales of public procurement should be observed when sourcing a 
  provider; 
 

• Transparency 
• Integrity 
• Economy 
• Openness 
• Fairness 
• Equality 
•  
• Competition and 
• Accountability 

 

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial

Formatted: Indent: Left:  1.25 cm,
Hanging:  0.02 cm, Tab stops:  2 cm,
Left

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, Font
color: Black

Formatted: Normal, Indent: Left: 
1.27 cm,  No bullets or numbering

Page 111



12.2  The Procurement Unit will provide advice on the most appropriate sourcing route to 
apply to ensure compliance to the Procurement Procedure Rules. 

 
12.3  Contracts must not Under no circumstances should Contracts be broken down to 
make two or more    orders  so as to avoid the   requirement for a 
Quotation, Tender or the requirement to   comply with Public   
 Contract Regulations (OJEU procedures).  This will be treated as   a direct 
breach to the procedure rules and reported to the Procurement Board. 
 
12.4 During the bidding process, suppliers may request further information before 
 responding to an Invitation to Tender (ITT) or Request for Quotation (RFQ). This 
 information must be documented and disseminated to participants. 

12.5 Public advertising of contract opportunities is required for values exceeding £5,000 if 
 the contract nature permits.  If however, there are justified reasons not to publically 
 invite bids in an open procedure and choose to select providers direct, this must be 
 agreed with the Procurement Unit. 

12.6 Contract Opportunities will be published via the following means (dependable on the 
 value banding): 

• E-tendering Portal (HPBC/SMDC sourcing portal) 
• High Peak BC and Staffordshire Moorlands DC websites 
• Regional Sourcing portals 
• National Government Contracts Finder Database 
• Supplement to the Official Journal of the European Union (OJEU)  
• Specialist publications (where applicable) 

12.7 To ensure a fair opportunity for potential suppliers to respond to RFQs or ITTs, 
sufficient time should be allowed for the advertising period.  Open advertising 
timescales must not be less than the recommended minimum periods detailed in 
ANNEX B. 

 
13 Late Submissions 
 
13.1  Tender submissions made after the stated response deadline will be referred to the 

Finance & Procurement Manager for review.  Bids received after the deadline will 
usually only be accepted in exceptional circumstances if;  

 
i. The other tenders have not been opened 
ii. There has been a failure of the approved e-tendering system 
iii. The failure to comply is the fault of the Councils 
iv. Other justifiable reason as authorised by the Finance & Procurement Manager 

 
14  Acceptance of Quotations & Tenders 
 
14.1  For Quotations (RFQ) and Tenders published via the Electronic tendering portal, the 
  opening procedures will be conducted by the Procurement Unit. 
 
14.2  All submissions received (RFQ / Tenders) must be opened at the same time, after 
  the closing date. 
 
14.3  Amendments or alterations to bids once received and opened will not normally be 

allowed.  However, where the examination of tenders reveals errors or discrepancies 

Page 112



in calculations which would affect the bid figure in an otherwise successful 
application, the participant is to be given details of such errors and discrepancies and 
afforded an opportunity of confirming or withdrawing the offer.  In addition abnormally 
low bids must be investigated. 

 
14.4  A tender may not be amended where for a particular requirement the lowest price 

 exceeds the service’s budgeted allowance (in this situation the process should be 
 stopped, reviewed and re-stated if necessary).  In the event that no supplier is able to 
 meet the budget provision, negotiation on price is permitted to take place withll all 
tenderers who are able to meet the defined minimum specification.  The revised price 
 must be uploaded to the ITT in the E-tendering portal. 

 
14.5  A tender may be amended where the successful tenderer agrees to reduce the
 tender price after negotiation because the original tender includes goods or services 
  provided covering a greater range of requirements than originally expected and, 
 although lowest overall, negotiation might allow further savings to the benefit of the 
  Council(s). 
 
15  Evaluation Criteria and Selection 
 
15.1  Quotation and tender responses must be evaluated against the criteria set out in the 
  published documentation for that contract opportunity.   
 
15.2  Qualification assessment is standard to published exercises, this is to determine the 
  suitability of the potential provider in consideration of the following (but not limited to); 
   

• Mandatory / Discretionary Exclusions 
• Litigation  
• Financial and Economic suitability 
• Insurances 
• Health & Safety 
• Sub-contractor arrangements 

 
15.3  Qualification questions will be set proportionate to the value and nature of contract.  

  For Procurement exercises that are subject to the requirements under Public Sector 
  Contract Regulations the Standard Questionnaire (SQ) must be used. 
 

15.4 The Council’s are keen to support and procure from suppliers who meet the standard 
 qualification criteria listed, although some exceptions can be granted to Third 
 Sector suppliers (e.g. a Social Enterprise). The standard model should be included 
 but be flexible and relevant to the nature of the contract. 
 

15.5 For tenders evaluation weightings must be based on the minimum % proportion for 
 Technical (Quality) and Commercial (Price).  The standard minimum weighting 
applied is 40% Technical and 60% Commercial, an increase to the commercial 
 element is permitted, however deviation from the minimum commercial % to a 
reduced commercial % element below 60% will require approval from the respective 
Executive Director or Head of Service. 
 

15.6 Technical sub criteria must be clearly set out with the proportionate % weightings 
 applied.  
 

15.7 All tender evaluations must be undertaken by a minimum of two officers, using the 
 standard scoring methodology and in accordance with the pre-published criteria. 

Page 113



 
15.8 The standard procurement evaluation matrix document must be used for evaluation 

 of all responses. The scores will be used to determine the potential supplier against 
 MEAT (the Most Economically Advantages Tender) (MEAT). This is based on 
highest score across both Technical and Commercial Scoring overall. 
 

15.9 In the event that a supplier fails to meet the minimum specification, as detailed in the 
 specification brief, the potential supplier will be rejected from the tender process. 
 

15.10 The Supplier response which scores highest in the evaluation matrix should be 
recommended for acceptance.  Prois provided bythat the a  supplier is  judged to 
be financially sound (based on a satisfactory credit rating and/or a wider  financial 
assessment) and offers best value value.should be recommended for acceptance.. 
 

15.11 Quotations are permitted to be based on 100% price provided that the specification 
 clearly states the minimum requirements / outputs are detailed and can be met. 

 
16 Sub-contractors  
 
16.1  The intended use of sub-contractors must be disclosed in the tender response and 

 forms part of the qualification requirements for completion. 
 
16.2  The Councils’ reserves the right not to approve the use of any sub-contractor if there 

 are valid reasons and evidence, which conflict with the Procurement Procedure 
 Rules. 

 
17 Insurances 
 
17.1  Suppliers will be required to evidence that they hold the required levels of  Insurance 

 cover to undertake business with the Council(s).  As standard they must have 
 Employers Liability and Public / Product Liability Insurance cover.  In addition, for 
 Consultancy based contracts, Professional Indemnity Insurance will be required.  
  

  The following levels are required as standard: 
   

• Employers Liability Insurance £5M 
• Public / Product Liability Insurance £10M* 
• Professional Indemnity Insurance £2M* 

  
  *The above levels may be changed to reflect the contract nature and should be set 

 proportionate to the nature, delivery and risk of the supplies, services or works being 
 procured. 

 
17.2  For contracts below £2,000 requiring supplier Public Liability Insurance cover.  

 Supplier insurance documents must be requested and verified by the Officer 
 responsible for the contract prior to commencement.  A copy should be retained by 
 the Officer responsible and reviewed on an annual basis thereafter for the lifetime 
 of the contract. 

 
17.3  For values between £2,000 to £5,000, a copy of the Public Liability Certificate should 

be uploaded and attached to the webform in addition to the quotation evidence. 
 
17.4  For contracts which are published through the Council’s e-tendering portal, copies of 

 supplier insurances will be obtained through the qualification requirement. 

Formatted: Font: Italic

Page 114



 
17.5  Single source appointments are subject to the same protocols for obtaining and 

verifying that suitable / adequate insurance cover is in place.  This is the 
responsibility of the commissioning officer to upload the insurance cover document 
with the single source webform. 

 
17.6  Contract Managers should review supplier public liability insurance documents at 

renewal dates in accordance with contract management procedures on an annual 
basis.  The Procurement Officers will also discuss this with Service Managers at 
review meetings.   

 
18 Contract Award and Completion 
 
18.1 Notification of award and debriefings will be completed by the Procurement Unit for 

values exceeding £5,000.   
 
18.2 For awards made requiring formal contractual agreement, once the sourcing 

procedure is completed, the contract should be executed in duplicate, the two copies 
of the contract must be signed by both the contractor and the Council(s) (in 
accordance with those listed on the authorised signatory list). One copy of the 
contract will be retained by the contractor and the other signed copy will be retained 
by Legal Services in the secure Legal file store.  Contracts should only be executed 
in counterpart in urgent cases and with the authorisation of the relevant Executive 
Director. 

 
18.3 Where the contract exceeds £100,000, both parties shall sign the contract under 

 seal, except where the Monitoring Officer is satisfied that in the circumstances it is 
 not necessary or in the best interests of the Council(s) for the contract to be executed 
 under seal such reasons shall be recorded in writing.  

 
19 Construction Procurement (Works Contracts) 
 
19.1 The generic procurement process does not fully translate to the procurement of 

construction contracts; there are a whole host of other considerations. In particular, 
technical and project expertise and capacity will be required commensurate with the 
project (either in-house or externally). Other considerations include: 

 
• Additional Tendering Requirements – e.g. to comply with industry guidance or 

procedural codes 
• Whole-Life Costing – not only should the initial cost of creating a building or 

structure be considered but also the cost of servicing and maintenance etc. over its 
lifetime. In appropriate circumstances, higher initial capital expenditure can be 
justified if it significantly reduces future servicing, maintenance and other 
operational costs   

• Estimating and Cost Control – robust estimating and cost control procedures are 
essential to avoid project overspend 

• Risk Management – potential risks must be identified at an early stage and an 
appropriate risk management strategy – including a risk register – put in place 

• Additional Statutory Obligations – these can be wide ranging including planning 
permissions, Building Control Regulations, Health and Safety requirements etc.; 
and 

• Sustainability – the Government’s National Procurement Strategy requires local 
authority construction projects to adequately consider social, economic and 
environmental factors (e.g. through protecting the natural environment). 

Page 115



 
19.2 PAS91 Construction Qualification will apply for OJEU works contracts. 
 
 
 
 
20 Frameworks Agreements  
 
20.1 A Framework agreement is a type of contract that has already been tendered by 

another organisation (by a third party buying organisation) and is a permissible 
contracting route for public sector organisations.  It is an agreement between one or 
more contracting authorities and one or more economic operators, the purpose of 
which is to establish the terms governing contracts to be awarded during a given 
period, in particular with regard to price and, where appropriate, the quantity 
envisaged. 

 
20.2 Framework agreements differ widely in their terms particularly as to whether the 

client accepts some contractual commitment without immediately placing orders or 
whether contractors are free to decline orders.  Contracts based on framework 
Agreements must always be awarded in accordance with the rules set out within the 
framework agreement documentation. This may be either: 

 
a)  By undertaking a ‘direct call-off’ from the framework agreement, where the terms 

are sufficiently precise to cover the particular call-off requirements without re-
opening competition and a contract can be awarded directly to a framework 
supplier; or 

b)  By holding a ‘further competition’ in accordance with the rules set out in the 
framework, where the requirements are provided to the framework suppliers in 
the relevant lot of the framework, and the framework suppliers provide their 
responses and price in return. 

 
20.3 Binding contracts are made only when an unconditional offer by one party has been 
 accepted by the other. A framework agreement is therefore a loose collective term 
 covering:  
 

• Framework arrangements (no binding commitment); and 
• Framework contracts (commitment by both parties to one another). 

 
20.4 The provisions of the Procurement Procedure Rules apply equally to these types of 

 agreement, and specifically: 
 

• The use of the framework must be approved and verified as providing value for 
money (some frameworks – especially construction – charge a % management 
fee) by the relevant Executive Director / Chief Executive. 

• The framework must be available to public sector bodies 
• The Procurement Unit must approve the contract within the framework as 

adequate for the procurement. 
 
21 E-Procurement  
 
21.1 The Councils recognise the importance of electronic trading and have or are in the 
 process of implementing the following e-procurement tools enabling electronic 
 sourcing, ordering, receiving goods and making payments.   
 

Page 116



• Corporate purchasing cards  
• Electronic tendering portal and contract management modules 
• Electronic auctions (“e-auctions”)  
• Purchase to pay systems 

 
21.2 Where an e-auction is used, the usual thresholds and authorisation procedures must 

be used as with a standard procurement processes. 
 

21.3 An official purchase order must be raised prior to the supplies, goods and services 
being commissioned. 

 
22 Purchase to Pay (P2P) Process 
 
22.1 The purchase to pay cycle covers the process of purchasing goods from the initial 

identification of the need to procure goods or services to the payment of the 
supplier.  When a need to purchase goods or services is identified, ANNEX E details 
the steps which should be followed. 

 
23 Contract Management 
 
23.1 All contracts must have a named contract manager including position, for the entirety 
 of the contract. 
 
23.2 All contracts must contain dispute resolution provisions and these must be used at 
 the earliest sign of something going wrong or the failure of Key Performance 
 Indicators (KPIs). 
 
23.3 Records of all contract performance discussions and liaison with contractors 

 should be kept and retained as evidence at all times in the event of any issues 
arising. 

 
23.4 Contracts should be effectively managed to ensure value for money is achieved, 
 potential risks are avoided and the outcomes and benefits identified in the business 
 case are delivered. 

a. Day-to-day contract review should be carried out within the service area by an 
officer nominated by the relevant Executive Director. For contracts that involve 
an ongoing relationship (i.e. are not one off in nature for the supply of goods or 
services), the Client and Supplier should hold mutually agreed regular meetings 
either quarterly or biannually with a set agenda and notes of the meeting kept.  
The frequencies of the meetings should be set appropriately to the delivery and 
nature of the contract arrangements in place. 

 
b. Contacts should not be terminated without first taking legal advice from the 

Executive Director & Monitoring Officer or delegated officer. 
 
c. Any decision to proceed to termination requires the authorisation of the relevant 

Executive Director / Head of Service. 
 
24 Collaborative Working 

24.1 Potential contracts as part of a consortium with other local or public authorities or the 
 private sector must have the agreement of the Procurement Unit and may only be 
 entered into if it is in the best interests of the Councils and it complies with the 

Page 117



 Procurement Procedure Rules of at least one of the other authorities (which must be 
 at least as rigorous as those included in these Procedure Rules) and that of the 
 requirements as set out in the Public Contract Regulations for above threshold 
 activity. All consultations and decisions should be recorded in writing. 
 
25 Transparency  
 
25.1 A register of all contractual agreements must be maintained centrally by the 
 Procurement Unit, by means of a central record / database.  The register is open for 
 inspection by any Member of Officer of the Council(s), upon request. 

25.2 In addition, a public extract from the Contracts Register (covering supplier details, 
 start/end dates and options to extend) shall be made available on the Council(s) 
 websites. 
 
25.3 Under the Transparency Code 2015 requirements, all opportunities for work 

exceeding £5,000 must be made available by open competition and advertising.  In 
addition all details of invites to tender and awards made over this value,value must 
be published quarterly by the Authority.  Purchase Card spendspend(s)s must be 
published monthly. 

 
25.4 The annual procurement forward plan will be available on the Council(s) websites. 
 This will list all planned forthcoming procurement events for the current year. 

25.5 Detailed documentation must be retained by the Procurement Unit to support the 
 procurement and evaluation process (clearly detailing the evaluation scores and 
 contract award) for the duration of the contract and after in accordance with the 
 Document Retention Policy.  All related data must be retained in the electronic 
 tendering portal applicable to the completion of the exercise 

25.6 Evaluation feedback (supplier debriefs) should be issued to all unsuccessful 
 tenderers immediately upon conclusion of the evaluation and award process as 
 standard protocol. 
 
26 Fraud and Corruption – Officer Interests 
 
26.1 Councillors and officers must not accept any form of hospitality from any Candidate 

during  a tendering (or similar exercise). Hospitality from suppliers, service providers 
or contractors who may or may not have current contracts with the Council may only 
be accepted in accordance with the Code of Conduct for Elected Members” and 
“Code of Conduct Employees, for officers, both of which form part of the Council’s 
Constitution. For both Members and officers the appropriate Declaration or Register 
of Gifts and Hospitality should be completed in accordance with this guidance.    

 
26.2 Prior and on the receipt of tenders, officers involved in the procurement will be 

required to complete the webform declaration disclosing any interests in the contract. 
All relevant Interests must be disclosed and the Procurement Unit (in discussion with 
the Monitoring Officer where required) will determine if it is appropriate for the officer 
to be involved in the subsequent procurement.  

 
26.3 The Monitoring Officer shall record and keep the particulars of any notice given by an 

officer of the Alliance under Section 117 of the Local Government Act 1972, of any 
pecuniary interest in a Contract.  

 

Page 118



 

27 Fraud & Corruption – Supplier  

27.1  A (standard) contract clause is included in the standard terms and conditions to  
  protect the Council(s) and secure entitlement to cancel the contract and recover any 
  loss resulting from such a cancellation, if the contractor, his employees or agents 
  with or without his knowledge: 
 

• Does anything improper to influence the Alliance or its employees in relation to 
the contact; or 

• Commits any offence under the Prevention of Corruption Acts 1889 to 1916 or 
any amendment of them; or 

• Provides a fee or reward, the receipt of which is an offence under section 117(2) 
of the Local Government Act 1972 (Article 45). 

27.2  All potential suppliers should be made aware of the Councils’ Anti-Fraud and  
  Corruption and Whistle Blowing policies. 

27.3  Suppliers will be required to sign a declaration [Non-Canvassing and Collusion] 
relating to the Prevention of Corruption (to indicate that they understand and agree to 
abide by the Council’s policies, including a standard clause on the Prevention of 
Bribery). 

 
28. Legislation – The legal Framework 
 
28.1 There are several legislative Acts which come in to force in relation to 

procurement.  The Procurement unit and Legal Services will provide guidance on the 
requirements of these acts and if they are applicable to the procurement activity 
being undertaken; 

 
Localism Act 2012 - Community Right to Challenge 
The Community Right to Challenge is the right for community organisations to submit 
an expression of interest in running services of local authority and fire and rescue 
authorities on behalf of that authority. 

 
Public Services Social Value Act 2012 
The Public Services (Social Value) Act came into force on 31 January 2013. The act 
requires consideration at the pre-procurement stage how the procurement activity 
may improve the social, environmental and economic well-being of the area in which 
the contract will be applied, how it might secure any such improvement and to 
consider the need to consult. 

 
Bribery Act 2010 
The Act defines bribery as giving or receiving a financial or other advantage in 
connection with the "improper performance" of a position of trust, or a function that is 
expected to be performed impartially or in good faith 

 
Modern Slavery Act 2015 
The Modern Slavery Act 2015 is an Act of the Parliament of the United Kingdom. It is 
designed to tackle slavery in the UK and consolidates previous offences relating to 
trafficking and slavery 

 
 

Page 119



 
 

Late Payment of Commercial Debts Regulations 2013 
Amended late payment legislation came into force on 16 March 2013, implementing 
European Directive 2011/7/EU on combating late payment in commercial 
transactions. 

 
Equality Act 2010 
In accordance with the Equality Act 2010, Contracting Authorities must comply with 
the Public Sector Equality Duty when conducting public procurement. 
 
Local Government Transparency Code 2015 
This Code is issued to meet the Government’s desire to place more power into 
citizens’ hands to increase democratic accountability and make it easier for local 
people to contribute to the local decision making process and help shape public 
services 

29 Freedom of Information 

29.1 The Freedom of Information (FOI) Act 2000 gives people the right to see information 
 that is held by any public organisation. It is intended to make public authorities more 
 open and responsible for their actions. The Act recognises that there are some valid 
 reasons for withholding information. Contractors are required to complete a Freedom 
 of Information Schedule identifying any confidential or commercially sensitive 
 information in their tender response. 

30 Data Protection  
 
30.1 Procuring Officers must consider the information governance requirements of the 

contract if they anticipate any Personal Data is to be processed as part of the 
contract e.g. data protection, security of information, records management. 
 

31.2 Where Personal Data may be processed as part of the contract Procuring Officers 
must seek further advice from the Legal services section.   
 

32.3 Where Personal Data may be processed as part of the contract, a Privacy Impact 
Assessment tool must be completed. This will help the Council identify the most 
effective way to comply with their data protection obligations, and meet individuals' 
expectations of privacy. 

 
33.4 Where requirements are identified by the Privacy Impact Assessment, Procuring 

Officers must ensure that any requirements are considered and built into the 
specification, and assessed where necessary as part of the contract evaluation 
including assurance that the contractor can comply with the General Data Protection 
Regulation and  seeking indemnities from contractors for breaches of the same.  

  

Page 120



ANNEX A – SPECIFICATION OF REQUIREMENT GUIDANCE 
 
Specifications will vary in length and complexity depending on the nature of the product or 
service being procured. However the following are common areas in most specifications, 
and should be included unless there is valid reason why not:  
 
• Title Page – Clearly describe the project and identify the Alliance and the main contact 

person (or contract administrator) 

 
• Table of Contents – Ensure that the document is well set out and easy to read, using 

plain language 

 
• Definitions – In addition to the definitions in the contract part of the tender, it is 

important that there is a list of definitions, or a glossary of terms, to ensure that 
technical words and phrases in the specification are mutually understood. Failure to 
define key words and phrases may lead to misunderstandings and inappropriate 
solutions 

 
• Introduction – The introduction should briefly explain the requirement and the context 

of that requirement 

 
• Scope – The scope will address areas such as anticipated demand or volumes, 

whether the supplier is to supply only, supply and install, provide training, provide 
supporting documentation, etc. and, where appropriate, should identify specifically 
what is not to be included 

  
• Background – The more information a tenderer has, the better able he or she is to 

respond to the tender. Background information may cover, where appropriate, the 
reason the Alliance is tendering, its expectations, the implications for the Alliance of 
implementing the solutions and other options which have been considered by the 
Alliance (and if dismissed, why). It may also explain how the solutions may link into 
other requirements and applications whether already implemented or planned for the 
future 

 
• Service Conditions and Environmental Factors – Explain any factors which may 

have a bearing on the operation of the goods or services. For example, if the physical 
environment may impact on the output design or performance, the specification must 
highlight these conditions. Examples include:  

o Operating and storage conditions  

o The need for interchange ability or compatibility with existing services and equipment  

o Personnel and health and safety aspects 

o Existing facilities to be maintained throughout a contract period and what has to be 
done to ensure this; and 

o Any sustainability requirements, for example, energy usage and the recycling 
capability of the goods.  

 
• Statement of Requirements – The Statement of Requirements (SOR) must contain a 

description of the outputs for services or functionality and performance requirements 
for goods. Details of the performance indicators and benchmarks that will be monitored 

Page 121



during the contract period must also be included. The SOR will vary significantly in 
scale and complexity depending on the size and nature of the contract but may contain 
some or all of the following:  
 
o Services:  Required outputs and/or outcomes  
   Performance measures  
   Targets  
   Management of the contract  
   Transfer of assets and personnel  
   The hand-over process  
   Transition between service providers  
 
o Goods:   Design and performance criteria  

  Functional characteristics  
  Performance characteristics  
  Technical characteristics  
  Reporting requirements  
  Standards  
  Compatibility and standardisation  
  Acceptance testing  
  Trade-ins  
 

o Works:   List drawings and other guidance provided  
  Details of access, ground conditions and preparation work  
  Performance criteria including contractors’ designs  
  Relationships with subcontractors and suppliers  
  Employer’s contractual and legal requirements  
  Insurances of works and indemnities  
  Works management including completion and defects  
  Control of time and cost  
  Quality control, standards and checks required  
  Health and safety; and  
  Temporary facilities.  
 

There are also strict rules in the EU procurement regulations about naming proprietary 
brands in specifications; it is not possible to specify brand names since this may distort 
competition.  

 
• Technology, systems and management techniques – The specification may need 

to state where the Alliance expects improvement in the use of systems and other 
management techniques. This will help ensure that the supplier continues to adopt 
best practice throughout the course of the contract 

 
• Quality Requirements – The specification should address the quality processes and 

standards expected of the supplier. For supply contracts, the quality of the goods 
required must be clearly defined 

 
• Whole of Life Support – This section should state what maintenance is required and 

any modifications or upgrades that may be required in the future plus any warranties 
required 

 

Page 122



• Security – If security is an issue then this section should ask suppliers about how the 
confidentiality of personal and commercial information will be handled. It may also 
address security issues such as theft-reduction measures 

 
• Training – Any training which is required for the product or service in question should 

be clearly identified and the supplier should be required to state what will be provided, 
plus the cost of any additional training requirements that may be above the levels 
agreed in the tender process 

 
• TUPE – The specification must clearly state any potential TUPE and pension 

implications that suppliers would need to consider when submitting a tender; and 

 
Implementation Timetable – The implementation timetable should be fully detailed 
including the commencement date, delivery date(s), milestones, and a completion 
date. The Alliance must specify the required dates and not ask the supplier when he or 
she can deliver, although the supplier can be asked to provide (costed) variations if 
deemed appropriate. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 123



ANNEX B – SUMMARY OF SOURCING THRESHOLDS 
 

H
PB

C
 / 

SM
D

C
  D

IS
C

R
ET

IO
N

A
R

Y 
 L

EV
EL

S 

Value £ 
 

Sourcing 
Method 

Min 
No. of  
bids * 

Sourced by Advertising 
Timescales** 

Method / Means 

NOTE: All Supplier purchases unless made via a Purchase Card transaction must have a valid 
Purchase Order raised on the Council’s Purchase order system 
0 – 500 
(one off 
spend) 

Purchasing 
Card 

1 Service n/a Purchase Card for one 
offs 
 

0 – <2,000 Best Value 
 

1 Service n/a Officers should be able 
to demonstrate best 
value has been 
achieved 

>2,000 –  
<5,000 

Request for 
Quotations 
(RFQ) 

3 Service No min period  
(sufficient time should 
be allowed for 
preparation of quotes) 
 
Advertise on 
Websites if required 

Procurement Webform  
 
Quotations obtained 
uploaded to Webform  

>5,000 –  
<25,000 

Request for 
Quotations 
(RFQ) 
 

3 Procurement No less than 2 wks 
 

Procurement Webform 
& 
E-tendering / 
Advertising portals 

>25,000 - 
EU (PCRs) 
thresholds 

Tender  
(ITT) 
 
 

4 Procurement No less than 3 wks 
(depending on the 
complexity of the 
contract) 

Procurement Webform 
& 
E-tendering / 
Advertising portals 

*where practicable   
**unless exceptional circumstances dictate – insufficient time is not exceptional 
 

European Union [EU Directive - OJEU] Thresholds (Jan 2016 – update every 2 yrs)  
 
The EU Directives for goods and supplies, services and works specify certain procedures and time scales 
that must be followed, which include Advertisement in the Official Journal of the European Union. 
 

Procurement Unit must be consulted and will be responsible for all activity exceeding these thresholds.   
 

Pu
bl

ic
 C

on
tr

ac
t R

eg
ul

at
io

ns
 A

pp
ly

  

Value £ Category 
 

Procedure Advertising 
Timescales (min 
applies) 

> £164,176 
 
> 62,842 Small Lots 

Supplies / Services Open ITT 30 days 
Restricted 
 

PQQ 30 days 
ITT 30 days 

Competitive with 
Negotiation 

EOI 30 days 
ITT 30 days 

Competitive Dialogue EOI 30 days 
Innovation 
Partnership 

EOI 30 days 

> £4,104,394 
 

> £785,530 Small Lots 

Works As above As above 

 
 

 

Page 124



 
ANNEX C– SUMMARY OF AUTHORITY TO PROCURE AND /AWARD 

THRESHOLDS 
 
 

Award and Exemptions Authorisation Limits: 
 

Total Contract Value    
(£) 

Authorisation Authorisation By 

<25,000 
 
 

Head of Service / Executive 
Director 

Webform 

>25,000 - <164,176 (EU 
Service Threshold) 
 
 

Executive Director / Chief 
Executive 

Webform 

>164,176 (EU Service 
Threshold) - <1,000,000 

Delegated Member Decision Delegated Member Report 
(Portfolio Holder for 

Procurement and the 
relevant service area) 

>1,000,000* Cabinet SMDC 
Executive HPBC 
(with prior Scrutiny Committee) 

Committee Report 

 
* Committee reports may be presented where the total contract value is less than £1,000,000 - 
where considered appropriate due to the nature of the procurement or where it relates to a key 
decision 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 125



 
ANNEX D - PERMITTED EXEMPTIONS TO THE RULES 

 
 
When applicable and justified, the Procurement Procedure Rules relating to the obtaining of 
quotation and tenders shall not apply when:- 
 
Exemption 1 In the case of contracts for the supply of work, goods, services or 

materials, the goods or materials are proprietary, patented or specialised 
articles or are sold only at a fixed price and no reasonably satisfactory 
alternative is available 

Exemption 2 The prices of the goods or materials are wholly controlled by trade 
organisations or Government order and no reasonably satisfactory 
alternative is available 

Exemption 3 If in the opinion of the Chief Executive/Executive Directors, there would 
be no genuine competition 

Exemption 4 The work to be executed, or the goods or materials to be supplied, will be 
procured through an extension to an existing contract, where the contract 
specifically includes for the extension 

Exemption 5 The work to be executed, or the goods or materials to be supplied, will be 
procured through a variation to an existing contract, where the contract 
specifically provides for that variation 

Exemption 6 The procurement of goods or services is required to react to, or to 
prevent, an emergency situation. An emergency situation is one: 
 

o Which is likely to involve risk of serious damage to or destruction of 
property 

o Where repairs or maintenance are required to property and delays to 
the procurement would result in the Alliance incurring further 
significant costs; or  

o Which is likely to involve risk of injury, or danger to health or life 
 

Exemption 7 The Alliance is joining a contract that has been awarded by another 
public body, which the Alliance can legally join 

Exemption 8 It can be evidenced that the goods or services to be purchased are 
offered to the Alliance at a price substantially less than the lowest price at 
which the Chief Executive/Executive Directors  would reasonably expect 
through completing a tendering exercise 

Exemption 9 The procurement of a good or service is required for an interim period (no 
longer than 12 months) to enable the alignment of contract dates with a 
public sector partner, and where to do so enables a collaborative 
procurement to be completed which, it can reasonably be anticipated, will 
deliver savings. 

Exemption 10 Any other justified reason as authorised and fully documented by the 
Chief Executive/Executive Directors up to the EU Services Threshold. 

 
 
In all cases above a written record must be kept of the reasons why an exemption was 
applied.  
 
 
 

Page 126



ANNEX E – PURCHASE TO PAY CYCLE 

1. Identification of Need - 
Identify the correct route to 

procure  

 

2. Raise a requisition & Communicate 
with the supplier 

 

3. Goods/ Services received 

 

4. Payment to the Supplier 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 
 

 

 

Are the goods/ Services required 
already provided to the Council? 

 

Raise a requisition on the purchase order 
system to the selected supplier 

 

Once the goods/ Services have 
been received, check the order 

meets the requirements 

 

The Supplier must submit an 
invoice to creditors quoting the 
Purchase order number which 

conforms to the Councils’ payment 
policy 

 

 
 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 
 There may be a contract already 

in place? - Check the Contracts 
register available on the website 

(if YES, place order,  
if NO continue) 

 

If the requisition is not compliant with the 
procurement procedure rules it may be 

rejected by the procurement unit  

 

Any issues with the goods/ 
services received that will result 

in a delay or hold back in 
payment must be reported to the 

creditors team to register as 
DISPUTED 

 

Payment runs are completed each 
week by the creditors team to pay 

invoices due 

 

 
 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 
 

 

 

What is the estimated cost of the 
purchase required? See Annex B 

for procurement thresholds & 
Process 

 

Communicate with the selected supplier, 
ensure the supplier is aware to send 

invoices direct to creditors and to quote 
the purchase order on Invoices 

 

If you wish to pay the invoice, 
Goods receipt (GRN)  the 

purchase order immediately (you 
do not have to wait for a request 

to GRN notification) 
 

Supplier invoices must be paid 
within 30 days of receipt if not in 

‘dispute’ 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Any purchase not under a current 
contract over the value of £2,000 

(Exc VAT) requires a 
procurement web form to be 

raised  
 

 

 

 

 

 

       
Is the supplier set up on the 

finance system?  
YES – go to step 2,  

NO complete a new supplier form 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 127



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Appendix C 
 
It is recommended that Part 3 of the Constitution – Responsibility of Functions, 
Table 6 Delegations to the Executive Director (Transformation) is updated to 
include the following:  

 
The Bank is authorised to honour all cheques or other order for payment drawn 
upon any account or accounts for the time being kept with the Bank in the 
name of the Council, notwithstanding that any such account or accounts to be 
overdrawn or increase any existing overdraft provided they are signed by 
either: 

(i) The Executive Director & Chief Finance Officer  
(+ Audit Services Manager; or Finance & Procurement Manager; 
or Principal Finance Officer for handwritten cheques only)  
for amounts up to £10,000; 

(ii) The Executive Director & Chief Finance Officer  
+ Audit Services Manager; or Finance & Procurement Manager  
for amounts up to £50,000; 

(iii) The Executive Director & Chief Finance Officer  
+ Chief Executive Officer; or Executive Director & Monitoring 
Officer  
for amounts in excess of £50,000. 

 

Page 129



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 131

Agenda Item 12
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3, 5 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 To approve the Minutes of the previous meeting
	4 External Audit Findings
	6 Risk Management Update
	7 Treasury Management Update: Mid Year Report 2017/18
	8 2017/18 Internal Audit Periodic Report April to August 2017
	8. Internal Audit Periodic Report Apr-Aug 2017-18 Appendix 1
	8. Internal Audit Periodic Report Apr-Aug 2017-18 Appendix 2
	8. Internal Audit Periodic Report Apr-Aug 2017-18 Appendix 3

	9 Appointment of Mayor 2018/19
	10 Minutes of the Constitution Sub-Committee - 19 September 2017
	Appendix 1
	Appendix 2
	Appendix 3

	12 To approve the exempt minutes of the previous meeting

